JAIN SONS FINLEASE LIMITED

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Seventeenth Annual General Meeting of lain Sons Finlease Limited
will be held on Wednesday, the 27* day of May, 2015 at 3.00 pm at the Registered Office of the
Company at 4" Floor, Building 8-2-682/1, Banjara Hills Road no. 12, Hyderabad - 500034, Andhra
Pradesh, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Adoption of Audited Annual Accounts for the year ended as on 31-Mar-2015:
To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31-Mar-2015 and the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended an that date and the Reports of the
Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon.

2. Re-appointment of Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai, Chairman of the company, who retires by
rotation:
To appeint a Director in place of Mr. Vineet Chandra Ral (DIN: 00606290), Chairman of the
company, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himseif for re-appointment.

3. Re-appointment of Mr. Pradeep Pursnani, Nominee Director of the company, who retires
by rotation:
To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Pradeep Purspani (DIN: 06563785}, Nominee Director
of the company, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

4. Noting of interim Dividend:
To take note of Interim Dividend declared and paid at the rate of 0.001% per annum for the
financial year 31-Mar-2015 to all Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference
Sharehelders of the company.

5. Confirmation and ratification of the re-appointment of M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co LEP
{having Firm Registration Number: 001076N), Statutory Auditors and fixing of their
remuneration:

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s} the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 139 and any other applicable
provisians, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder, as amended
from time to time, the re-appointment of M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered
Accountants (having Firm Registration Number: 001076N) as Statutory Auditors of the
Company from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of next
Annual general meeting of the company be and is hereby confirmed and ratified by the
members of the company at such remuneration plus service tax, out-of-pocket, travelling
and living expenses, etc,, as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the
Company and the Statutory Auditors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or Mr. Chirag Desai, Company Secretary of the
company, be and are severally hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and
things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient for the purpose of giving\
effect to this resolution.”
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SPECIAL BUSINESS:

6. Appointment of Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy as an Independent Director of the Company:
To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without madification(s) the following resolution
as an Ordinary Reseiution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and other applicabie
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 {“Act”} and Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 ("Rules”) read with Schedule IV to Act and other
applicable provisions of Act and Rules and other rules made pursuant to Act {including any
statutory modification(s} or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and any other.
law for the time being in force, if applicable, Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy {holding DIN:
02196839), Additional (Independent) director of the Company, in respect of whom the
Company has received a notice in writing from a member proposing her candidature for the
office of director and who has submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria for
independence as prescribed under Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and who is
eligible for appointment, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent director of the
Company with effect from 27-May-2015 to held office for five consecutive years for a term
up to 26-May-2020.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or Mr. Chirag Desai, Company Secretary of the
company, be and are severally hereby authorized to de all such acts, deeds, matters and
things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient for the purpose of giving
effect to this resolution.”

7. Regularization of appointment of Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran, Additional (Nominee)
Director of the company as a Nominee Director:
To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification({s) the following resclution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 152 and 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 {"Act”) and
the Companies {Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and such other
applicable provisions, rules as may be applicabla (including statutory maodification(s) or re-
enactment{s) thereof for the time being in force) and any other law for the time being in
force, if applicable, Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran {holding DIN: 01983108), whose term of
office as an additional (nominee} director, pursuant to erstwhile Section 260 of the
Companies Act, 1956, expires at this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the
Company has received a notice under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 proposing her
candidature for the office of a nominee director, be and is hereby appointed as a nominee
directer of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or Mr. Chirag Desai, Company Secretary of the
company, be and are severally hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and
things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient for the purpose of giving
effect to this resolution.”

8. Issue and Offer of Equity Shares of the company on a Private Placement basis:
This is part of existing employee compensation plan. To consider and if thought fit to pass
with or without medification(s) the follewing resolution as a Special Resolution:




“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 42, 62 and other appticable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 {"Act”) Rule 14 of Companies {Prospectus and
Allotment of Securities} Rules, 2014 ({including any statutory modification thereto or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force), and the Articles of Association of the
Company and the regulations/guidelines, if any, prescribed by any relevant authorities from
time to time, to the extent applicable and subject to such other approvals, permissions and
sanctions, as may be necessary and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be
considered necessary by the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”
which term shall be deemed to include any Committee thereof for the time being exercising
the powers conferred an the Board by this Resoiution} or as may be prescribed or imposed
while granting such approvals, permissions and sanctions which may be agreed to by the
Board, the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to create, offer, issue and
allot upte 1,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- (Rupees Ten only} each at par, on a private
placement basis, to such persen or persons and in such proportion and on such terms and
conditions as set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed to the Notice convening this
meeting.

RESCLVED FURTHER THAT in accordance with provisions of Section 43 of the Act, the Equity
shares to be issued and allotted shall rank pari-passu with the existing Equity Shares of the
company in all respects.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or Mr. Chirag Desai, Company Secretary of the
company, be and are severally hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and
things as may he considered necessary, desirable or expedient for the purpose of giving
effect to this resclution.”

Re-Appointment of Sanjib Kumar tha as a Director & CEQ of the company:
To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s} the folfowing resolution
25 a Special Resotution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 and Schedule V and
all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel}) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification{s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force}, the re-
appointment of Mr. Sanjib Kumar Jha as a Director & CEQ of the Company for a period of 3
(three} years w.e.f. 26-Mar-2015 be and is approved on the following terms and conditions:

(Sl No: | -Particulars - o Composition s . e i

1 Fixed Salary Rs.50,00,000/- per annum with an increase
which may be decided by the Board of Directors
from time to time within the limits, as specified

in Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013,

2 Performance linked variabie Upto 50% of fixed amount

pay
3 Accommodation Free Furnished Accommodation
4 Mediclaim coverage As per rules of the Company's scheme
5 Leave Encashment As per rules of the Company’s scheme
§ Provident Fund As per rules of the Company’s scheme
7 Telephone expense As per rules of the Company's scheme

reimbursement
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial
year during the currency of tenure of service of Mr. Sanjib Kumnar Jha, as a Director & CED of
the Company, the payment of salary, perquisites and other allowances as approved by this
resolution shall be payable as minimum remuneration.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Ms. Vineet Chandra Rai, Chairman of the Company be and is
hereby authorised to enter into an agreement fissue a letter for appointment and increase
in remuneration and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered
necessary, desirable or expedient for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or Mr. Chirag Desai, Company Secretary of the
company, be and are severally hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and
things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient for the purpose of giving
effect to this resolution.”

Revision in remuneration payable to Mr. Sanjib Kumar Jha, Director & CEQ of the
company:

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s} the following resolfution
as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 and Schedule V and
alt other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
{Appeintment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014 {including any
statutory modification(s} or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the revision in
remuneration payable to Mr. Sanjib Kumar Jha, Director & CEQ of the Company for the
remaining peried of his tenure w.e.f 01-Dec-2014 as detailed below be and is hereby
approved:

Sk No. | Particulars 00 L Compesition R i

1 Fixed Salary Rs.55,00,000/- per annum with an increase
which may be decided by the Board of Directors
from time to time within the limits, as specified

in Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013,

2 Performance linked variable Upto 50% of fixed amount

pay
3 Accommodation Free Furnished Accommodation
4 Mediclaim coverage As per rules of the Company's scheme
5 Leave Encashment As pet rules of the Company’s scheme
6 Pravident Fund As per rules of the Campany's scheme
7 Telephene expense As per rules of the Company’s scheme

reimbursement

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial
year during the currency of tenure of service of Mr. Sanjib Kumar Fha, as Director & CEQ of
the Company, the payment of salary, perquisites and other allowances as approved by this
resolution shall be payabie as minimum remuneration.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai, Chairman of the Company be and is
hereby authorised to enter into an agreement /issue a letter for appointment and increase
in remuneration and to do alf such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered
necessary, desirable or expedient for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.
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RESOQOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or Mr. Chirag Desai, Company Secretary of the
company, be and are severally hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and
things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient for the purpose of giving
effect to this reselution.”

Authorisation to the Board of Directors to mortgage, create charge on zll or any of the
assets of the Company:
To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without madification(s) the following resaiution
as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT consent of the members of the company be and is hereby accorded
pursuant to section 180{1}{a} and other applicable provisions if any, of the Companies Act,
2013, to the Board of Directors of the Company to pledge, mortgage and/or charge in all or
any part of the moveahble or immovable properties of the Company and the whole or part of
the undertaking of the Company of every nature and kind whatsoever and/or creating a
floating charge in all or any movable or immovable properties of the Company and the
whole of the undertaking of the Company to or in favour of Banks, Financial Institutions, any
other lenders or debenture trustees to secure the amount borrowed by the Company or any
third party from time to time for the due payment of the Principal fogether with interest,
charges, costs, expenses and all other monies payahble by the Company or any third party in
respect of such borrowings provided that the maximum extent of the indebtedness secured
by the properties of the Company does not exceed Rs.300,00,00,000/- (Rupees Three
Hundred Crore only) at any time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or Mr. Chirag Desai, Company Secretary of the
company, be and are severally hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and
things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient for the purpose of giving
effect to this resclution.”

Borrowing Limits under section 180(1) {c} of the Companies Act, 2013:
To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant fo the provisions of Section 180(1){c) and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”} read with Companies {(Meeting of
Board and its Powers) Rules 2014 (including any statutory modification{s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof for the time being in force), and the Articles of Association of the Company and
subject to such approvals, sanctions and consents (hereinafter referred to as the
“Approvais”) as may be required from such authorities and institutions or bodies and such
conditions as may be prescribed by any of them while granting such approvat, which may be
agreed to, in its sole discretion, by the Board of Directors of the Company {hereinafter
referred to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed to include any Committee(s)
constituted/to be constituted by the Board to exercise its powers including powers
conferred by this resolution and/or be duly authorised persons thereof for the tome being
eercising the powers conferred on the Board by this resolution), consent of the members of
the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board to borrow in any manner from time to
time any sum or sums of moneys at its discretion on such terms and conditions as the Board
may deem fit, notwithstanding that the moneys to be borrowed by the Company together
with the moneys already borrowed or to be borrowed (apart from temporary loans and
other credit facilities obtained or to be obtained from the Company’s bankers in the ordinary
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course of its business), whether secured or unsecured, will or may exceed the aggregate of
the paid up capital and free reserves that is to say, reserves not set apart for any specific
purpase, provided that the maximum amount of money so borrowed and outstanding at any
one time shall not exceed the sum of Rs.300,00,00,000/- {Rupees Three Hundred Crore
only).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or Mr. Chirag Desai, Company Secretary of the
company, be and are severally hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and
things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient for the purpose of giving
effect to this resolution.”

Approval of Capital Advisory Contract to be entered with intellecap Advisory Services
Private Limited:

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without madification{s) the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 188 and any other applicable provisions of the
Corpanies Act, 2013, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to
the Board of Directors of the Company to enter into a ‘Capital Advisory Contract’ for raising
equity / quasi equity capital or debt through Investor{s) to expand business and / or provide
exit to the existing investor of the Company with Intellecap Advisory Services Private
Limited, a Company in which Ms. Swati Rai, wife of Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai, Chairman of the
Company is interested as shareholder and Mr. Anurag Agrawal, Director of the Company is
interested as shareholder in the said Intellecap Advisory Services Private Limited, for a
period of one year comimencing from 27-May-2015 on such terms and conditions as
mentioned in the said draft contract.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the draft ‘Capital Advisory Contract’, as piaced before the
meeting and initialled by the Chairman for the purpose of identifications be and is hereby
approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or My. Chirag Desai, Company Secretary of the
campany, be and are severally hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and
things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient for the purpose of giving
effect to this resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

f 14 o

-Chirag Desai
Company Secretary
{(Membership No.: A22880)

Hyderabad, 27 May, 2015

Registered Office:

4" Floor, Building 8-2-682/1,

Banjara Hills Road no. 12,

Hyderabad - 500034, Andhra Pradesh.
CIN: UG5910AP1998PLC08894 1




Notes:

The relative Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2613
{Act] in respect of the business under item Nos. 5 to 13 of the Notice, is annexed hereto.

A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (AGM] is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and the proxy need not be a
Member of the Company. The instrument appointing the proxy, in order to be effective,
must be deposited at the Company’s Registered Office, duly completed and signed, not less
than FORTY-EIGHT HOURS before the meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf of lmited
companies, etc., must be supported by appropriate resolutions/authority, as applicable.

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the Member whose name appears as the first
holder in the order of names as per the Register of Merabers of the Company witl be entitled
to vote.

Members seeking any information with regard to the Accounts, are requested to write to
the Company at an early date, so as to enable the Management to keep the information
ready at the meeting.

By Order of the Board of Directors

o

irag Desai
Company Secretary
{Membership Nao.: A22880)

Hyderabad, 27" May, 2015

Registered Office:

4% Fioor, Building 8-2-682/1,

Banjara Hills Road no. 12,

Hyderabad - 500034, Andhra Pradesh.
CIN: U65910AP1998PLC0O28941




Exptanatory Statement
(Pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

As required by section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 {Act), the following explanatory statement
sets out ali material facts relating to the business mentioned under Hem Mos. 5 to 13 of the
accompanying Notice:

item No. 5 - Ratification of re-appointment of Statutory Auditors:
This explanatory statement Is provided though strictly not required as per section 102 of the Act.

M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number DO1076N) has
been appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company in the Annual General Meeting held on 29-
Sep-2014 for the period of two vears to hold office from the conclusion of Sixteenth Annual General
Meeting till the conclusion of the Eighteenth Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2016
{subject to the ratification of their appointment at Annual General Meeting).

In view of the above, M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, being eligible for re-appointment and based
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors has, at its meeting held on
27-May-2015, proposed the ratification of re-appointment of M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co LLP,
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number O01076N) as the statutory auditors of the
Company from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the Eighteenth
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2016.

The Board recommends the Resoluiion at ltem No. 5 for approval by the Members.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Persannel of your Company or their relatives are concerned
or interested in the said resclution.

Item No. 6 - Appointment of Ms, Bhama Krishnamurthy as an independent director:

Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy was appeinted as an Additional {Independent) Director of the campany
on 27-May-2015.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has recommended the appointment of Ms. Bhama
Krishnamurthy, as an Independent Director from 27-May-2015 upto 26-May-2020.

Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy was Country Head and Chief General Manager of SIDBI (retired on 31-
Dec-2014). She is M. Sc. From Mumbai University. She has over 35 years of experience in IDBI (now
IDBI Bank) and SIDBI, an Apex Development Bank for MSMEs in India covering almost all areas of
development banking operations viz., Resource Raising and Management, {Rupee and Forex),
Integrated Treasury operations, Credit Dispensation and Management, Risk management,
Management of Associates and Subsidiaries, etc. not only from policy perspectives but
impiementation aspects, besides direct credit functions including as Head of Branch operations and
member of various credit committees. She had also handled Human Resources Development
division covering recruitment, training and promoction aspects. Qver the years, she was associated
with not only framing policy documents for the Bank, viz. Investment Policy, ALM Policy, Loan Policy,
and Internal Control Guidelines for Derivatives etc., but also piloting such policy papers in the Board
for adoption through articulation of subtle changes brought in. Closely dealt with Multilateral and
Bilateral International Agencies in close coordination with Govt of India.




She had served as Nominee Director en the Boards of State Financial Corporations, viz: Karnataka
State Financial Corporation (KSFC), The Tamilnadu Industrial Investment Corporation (TIIC} and
Andhra Pradesh State Financial Corporation (APSFC} and was instrumental in bringing in several
policy changes.

Presently, Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy is associated with the following companies/funds:

5i. No. | Name of the Companies Designation

1 Ujiivan Financial Services Private Limited MNominee Director
2 SIDBI Venture Capital Limited Additional Director
3 Ladderup Finance Limited Additional Director
4 IDBI Capital Market Services Limited Additional Director
5 Reliance Industrial Infrastructure Limited Additional Director
6 Amtek India Limited Additianal Director
7 IMT Auto Limited Additional Birector

tn terms of Section 149 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Bhama
Krishnamurthy being eligible and offering himself for appointment is proposed to be appointed as an
independent director for five consecutive years for a term upto 26-May-2020. A notice has been
received from a member proposing Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy as a candidate for the office of
director of the Company.

In the opinion of the Beard, she fulfills the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and rules
made thereunder for her appointment as an independent director of the Company and that she is
independent of the management. Copy of the draft letter of appointment of Ms. Bhama
Krishnamurthy as an independent director setting out the terms and conditions would be available
for inspection without any fee by the members at the Registered Office of the Company during
normat business hours on any working day, excluding Saturday.

The Board considers that her association would benefit the Company and it is therefore desirable to
avail services of Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy as an independent director. The Board recommends the
resoluticn in relation to appointrent of Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy as an independent director as set
out at Item No. 6, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company.

Except, Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of your
Company or their relatives are concerned or interested in the said resolution.

ltem No. 7 — Appointment of Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran as a neminee director:

Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran was appointed as Additional {Neminee) Director of the company, as a
nominee of M/s. Omidyar Network w.e.f, 26-Mar-2015. Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran received an
MBA in finance and a BS in physics from Madurai Kamaraj University. She brings extensive
experience in early-stage venture capital to her role at Omidyar Network. She leads investments in
medical technotogy and healthcare initiatives that bring critical services to millions of Indians who
lack access to reliable, quality care. She also invests in education sector oppertunities with a focus
on organizations working to foster a better education ecosystem in India.

Prior to joining Omidyar Network in early 2012, she spent seven years at Venture East, an early-stage
venture capital fund. While there, she made many successful investments across sectors spanning
clean tech, enterprise software, IT services, financial inclusion, supply chain, and group buying.
Previously she was an investment banker at Lazard India where she focused on the life sciences and




consumer products sector. She also served in various M&A, business development, and corporate
strategy roles at UTV Interactive and Cadila Pharmaceuticals. She began her career as a principal
correspondent on the corporate reporting and equity analysis team for one of India’s leading
business dailies, The Financial Express

Pursuant to the provisions of section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran
hold office as such upto the date of this Annual General Meeiing. The Company has received a
notice along with requisite deposit from a member under section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013
proposing her candidature for the office of Nominee Director.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resalution as sef out at item no. 7 of the notice for approval of
the Members.

Except, Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of your
Company or their relatives are concerned or interested in the said resolution.

item No. 8 - issue and Offer of Equity Shares on a Private Placement basis:

Pursuant to section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies {Share Capital &
Debentures) Rules, 2014, provides, inter-alia, that whenever it is proposed fo increase the
subscribed capital of a company by issue of further shares, such shares may be offered to any
persons whether or not those persons are holders of the equity shares of the company or employess
of the company, if authorized by way of a Special Resolution.

Furthermore, as per section 42 of the Act, read with the Rules framed there under, a company
offering or making an invitation to subscribe to securities on a private placement basis, is required to
ohtain the prior approval of the Shareholders by way of Special Resclution, for each of the offers and
invitations.

The Board of Directors on 26-Mar-2015, subject to approval of the shareholders of the company, has.
approved the following proposat for issue of equity shares on preferential basis.

U approved L R

1 Nitin Agrawal 1,00,000 | Yes, as CFO

2 Rajan Juneja 35,000 | Not Applicable

3 Pratik Mandvia 7,500 | Not Applicable

4 Ruchir Shah 7,500 | Not Applicable
TOTAL 1,50,000

The information, required to be mentioned in the explanatory statement as per the companies act,
2013 are as follows:-

1. Object of the issue: To offer selected employees opportunity to own shares in the company as a
reward for extracrdinary commitment shown by them,

2. Total Number of shares to be issued: 1,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- {(Rupees Ten only) each.

The price or price band at/within which allotment is proposed: at par {Rs.10 per share)

4.  Basis on which the price has been arrived at along with the report of the registered valuer: The
shares are being issued at par with a view that some part of consideration should come from
the employee instead of issuing them without any consideration. This issuance is part of the
pool of 840,889 shares approved to be allotted under the share based employee compensation

w
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. The pre issue

plan. Of thase, 560,000 shares are already allotted to the CEQ, Mr Sanjib Jha at NIL
consideration. The balance 280,889 was to be allotted to employees based on recommendation
of the CEO and approval of the Board. The same is being proposed to be allotted at par now.

Relevant date with reference to which the price has been arrived at: 10-Mar-2015

The class or classes of persons te whom the allotment is proposed to be made: Employees and
Key Managerial Personnel

intention of promoters, directors or key managerial personnel to subscribe to the offer:
Promoters / Directors of the Company are not intending to participate/subscribe to the present
offer. Mr. Nitin Agrawal, 2 Key Managerial Personnel is intending to participate/subscribe to the
present offer.

The proposed time within which the allotment shall be completed: The Company will complete
the issue & allotment of Equity Shares within a period of 60 days from the date of receipt of the
share application money received from the applicant.

The names of the proposed allottees and the percentage of post preferential offer capital that
may be held by them: The name of the proposed allottees and the percentage of post
preferential offer capital that may be held by them are as follows:-

Mr. Nitin Agrawal 0 0.00% 1,00,000 0.91%

1

2 Mr. Rajan Juneja 9,001 0.08% 44,001 0.40%
3 ivir. Pratik Mandvia 2,000 0.02% 9,500 0.09%
4 Mr. Ruchir Shah 5,000 0.05% 12,500 0.11%

The change in control, if any, in the company that would occur consequent to the private
placement offer: NONE {There will not be any change in the management control of the
Company on account of this proposed private placement allotment except minor change in the
shareholding pattern as well as voting rights).

The number of persons to whom allotment on preferential basis have already been made
during the year, in terms of number of securities as well as price: During the year, no shares has

been allotted on preferential basis.

The justification for the aliotment proposed to be made for consideration other than cash:
together with valuation report of the registered valuer: Not Applicable.

and post issge shareholding: pattern of the company are as follows:

“Cate

at -of Sh old re-issue’ P

Pfdmoter's holding:

1 Indian:
Individual 5,10,001 8.41% 910,001 8.30%
Bodies Corporate 59,995,995 55.47% 59,595,995 54,70%




Sub Total 69,09,926 63.88% 69,098,996 62.99%
2 Foreign Promaoters 0 0.00% - 0.00%
Sub Total {A) 69,09,996 63.88% 69,058,996 62.99%
B Non-Promoter’s Holding:
1 Institutional Investors o 0.00% - 0.00%
2 MNon-Institution:
Private Corporate Bodies 10,00,000 5.24% 10,00,000 9.12%
Directors and Relatives 75,001 0.69% 75,001 0.68%
Indian Public 1,43,004 1.31% 2,93,004 2.67%
Others; Foreign Bodies 26,91,347 24.88% 26,91,347 24.54%
Corporate
Sub Total (B} 39,09,352 36.12% 40,59,352 37.01%
Grand Total (A + B} 1,08,19,348 | 100.00% | 1,09,69,348 100.00%

Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 provides inter alia, that when it is proposed to increase the
issued capital of a Company by allotment of further shares, etc., such further shares shall be offered
to the existing shareholders of the Company in the manner laid down in the Section uniess the
shareholders in general meeting decide otherwise by passing a special resolution. Therefore,
consent of the shareholders by way of Special Resolution is being sought pursuant to the provisions
of Sections 42 & 62 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The members are, therefore, requested to accord their approval authorizing the Board to go for the
proposed private placement and / or preferential issue as set out in the resolution at item no. 8.

Except, Mr. Nitin Agrawal, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of your Company or their
relatives are concerned or interested in the said resolution.

ftemn No. 3 - Reappointment of Mr. Sanjib Kumar tha, as a Director & CEO of the company:

Nr. Sanjib Kumar Jha, Director & CEO of the Company has been associated with the Company since
tast 4 years. He is Company Secretary and has knowledge and experience in the field of Finance,
Treasury and Business Administration.

Considering his experience, knowledge and cantributions made in growth of the Company and as
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directars of the
Company has re-appointed Mr. Sanjib Kumar Jha as a Director & CEQ of the company for the period
of 3 {three} years w.e.f 26-Mar- 2015 on such terms and condltrons as mentioned below

SkiNe, | Particulars: o L U Composition: S

1 Fixed Salary Rs.50,00,000/- per annum W|th an increase
which may be decided by the Board of Directors
from time to time within the limits, as specified
in Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

2 Performance linked variable pay Upto 50% of fixed amount

3 Accommodation Free Furnished Accommeodation

4 Mediclaim coverage As per rules of the Company’s scheme
5 leave Encashment As per rules of the Company’s scheme
6 Provident Fund As per rules of the Company's scheme
7 Telephone expense reimbursement | As per rules of the Company’s scheme

The above remuneration is to be paid as minimum remuneration in the absence or inadequacy of
profits, subject to the provisions af Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.




The Board recommends the Special Resolution as set out at item no. 9 of the notice for approvat of
the Members.

Except, Mr. Sanjib Kurnar Jha, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of your Company or
their retatives are concerned or interested in the said resolution.

Item No. 10 - Revision in remuneration payahble to Mr. Sanjib Kumar Jha, Director & CEQ of the
company:

Mr. Sanjib Kumar Jha, Director & CEQ of the Company has been associated with the Company since
last 4 years. He is Company Secretary and has knowledge and experience in the field of Finance,
Treasury and Business Administration. Mr. Sanjib Kumar Jha is re-appointed as a Director & CEQ of
the Company for the period of 3 [three) years w.e.f. 26-Miar-2015.

Considering his experience, knowledge and contributions made in growth of the Company and as
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of the
Company has revised the remuneration payable to him for the period of his tenure, w.e.f. 01-Dec-
2014 as follows:
-SleNowf Particufars. oL e Cempesition T
1 Fixed Salary Rs.55,00,000/- per annum with an increase
which may be decided by the Board of Directors
from time to time within the limits, as specified
in Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

2 Performance linked variable pay Upto 50% of fixed amount

3 Accommouodation Free Furnished Accommadation

4 Mediclaim coverage As per rules of the Company’s scheme
5 Leave Encashment As per rules of the Company's scheme
6 Provident Fund As per rules of the Company’s scheme
7 Telephone expense reimbursement | As per rules of the Company's scheme

The above remuneration is to be paid as minimum remuneration in the absence or inadequacy of
profits, subject to the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board recommends the Special Rasolution as set out at iterh no. 10 of the notice for approval of
the Members.

Except, Mr. Sanjib Kumar Jha, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of your Company or
their relatives are concerned or interested in the said resolution.

Additional Information for ltem Nos. 9 and 10:
The details as required Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, are given below:

I. General Information:

i Nature of Industry The company is engaged in the business of
lending or advancing money either with or
without security and to arrange and negotiate

loan.
2 Date or expected date of commencement | The Company is an existing company and is in
of commercial production operation since 1998

3 In case of new companies, expected date | Not Applicable




of commencement of activities as per
project approved by financial institutions
appearing in the prospectus

4 Financial performance based on given
indicators

As on 31-Mar-2015:

EPS: Rs.3.56 per share

Total Revenues: Rs.20,94,79,362/-
Profit After Tax: Rs.3,84,66,395/-

5 Foreign investments or collaborations, if
any.

Rs 10,00,00,000/- by Michael and Susan Dell
Foundation;
Rs 25,00,00,025/- by Omidyar Network

Il. Information about the appointee:

1 Background details

Mr. Sanjib Kumar Jha, aged 39 years had led
the corporate affairs and finance functions for
Intellecap and its group companies. He
worked closely with the Managing Director,
Chief Operating Officer, and the Boards of
Intellecap and its group companies
strategizing and executing the next steps in
the growth of intellecap. He also served as an
internal advisor to Intellecap’s subsidiary
companies,

Mr. Sanjib Kumar Jha has over 14 years of

experience in business planning, mergers and

acquisitions, transaction structuring,
negotiation, execution, deal closure and
portfolio management, management

information systems, financial accounting,
relationship management with institutional
investors, venture capital funds, and key
pariners.

in the past, Mr. Sanjib Kumar tha was among
the initial founding team member at ATS
Services, a domestic BPO, and later joined
Actis, where he concentrated on transactions
and facilitated exits through public markets in
the financial services, FMCG, pharmaceutical
and automotive sectors. After Actis, Mr. Sanjib
Kumar lha played a role in setting up Lok
Capital in India. At Lok, he was also
responsible for investiments with major Indian
MFIs. Mr. Sanjib Kumar Jha is a qualified
Company Secretary.

2 Past Remuneration

Fixed Salary: Rs.50,00,000/-
Performance tinked variable pay: upto 50% of
the fixed amount

3 Recognition or awards

Me.  Sanjib Kumar tha is bhaving good
experience in the industry in which the
Company operates.




4 lob profile and his suitably He is actively involved in the business of the
Company and manages day to day treasury
business activities. He is also responsible for
new business development of the Company.
Taking into consideration his expertise, he is
well suited for the responsibilities currently
assigned to him by the Board of Directors of
the Company.

5 Remuneration proposed Fixed Salary: Rs.55,00,000/-
Performance linked variable pay: upto 50% of
the fixed amount

6 Comparative remuneration profile with | At par with the industry standards in which
respect to industry, size of the company, | the Company operates

profile of the position and person {in case
of expatriates the relevant details would
bhe with respect to the country of his
origin)

7 Pecuniary relationship  directly or | No relationship with any pramoter, directors
indirectly with the company, or | or other managerial personnel.

relationship with the managerial
personnel, if any

i, Other Information:

1 Reasons of loss or inadegquate profits Not Applicable
2 Steps taken er proposed to be taken for | Not Applicable
improvement

3 Expected increase in productivity and | Not Applicable
profits in measurable

Item No. 11 and 12 - Authoerisation to the Board of Directors to mortgage, create charge on all or
any of the assets of the Company and Borrowing Limits under section 180(1}{c) of the Companies
Act, 2013:

In order to meet the future requirements of funds, which may arise on account of the
plans/programs/business, the Caompany may require further loans/borrowings from time to time
from financial institutions, banks and other entities. Further, to secure such borrowings, the
Company may be required to create charge/mortgage/hypothecation on all or any of its movable
and/or immovable assets, both present and future as may be required from time to time.

In terms of the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) &180(1){a} of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company
needs to take approval of members of the Company for increasing the borrowing powers and
authority to create charge / morigage on the assets of the Company to secure the moneylies)
horrowed from financial institutions, banks and other financial entities from time to time. Hence it is
proposed to take your approval for a fimit upto Rs.300,00,00,000/- (Rupees Three Hundred Crore
onty).

The Board recommends the resolutions as set out at item nos. 11 & 12 of the Notice for your
approval.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of your Company or their relatives are concerned
or interested in the said resolution,




item No. 13 — Approval of Capital Advisory Contract to be entered with intellecap Advisory
Services Private Limited:

The Companies Act, 2013 aims to ensure transparency in the transactions and dealings between the
related parties of the Company. The provisions of Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, which
governs the Related Party Transactions, and it requires thai for entering into any contract or
arrangement as mentioned herein below with the related party, the Company must obtain prior
approval of the Board of Directors and in case of the Company having 2 pald up share capitat of
rupees Ten crore or more, prior approval of the shareholders by way of a Special Reselution must be
abtained:

Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials;

Selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of any kind;

Leasing of property of any kind;

Availing or rendering of any services;

Appointment of any agent for purchases or sale of goods, materials, services or property;

Such related party’s appointment to any office or place of profit in the company, its subsidiary
company or associate company and

7. Underwriting the subscription of any securities or derivatives thereof, of the Company.

Ao o

in the light of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of your Company in
their meeting held on 27-May-2015, had approved the Capital Advisory Contract, to be enter into
with Intellecap Advisory Services Private Limited.,

The members of the company are hereby further informed that:

1. The Board of Directors in their meeting, which was heid on 25-Aug-2014, had approved the
Capital Advisory Contract for raising equity / quasi equity capital or debt through Investor(s) to
expand business and / or provide exit to the existing investar of the company with Intellectual
Capital Advisory Services Private Limited. The same was duly approved by the shareholders of
the company in their meeting held on 29-Sep-2014.

2. Intellectual Capital Advisery Services Private Limited had undergone restructuring and its capital
advisory business has been transferred to a newly formed company i.e. Intellecap Advisory
Services Private Limited. Hence, now it is proposed to the members of the company that the said
contract shall be entered with Intellecap Advisory Services Private Limited by modifying certain

terms and conditions as specified below:

Intellecap Advisory Services
Private Limited

Intellectuai Capital Advisory
Services Private limited

i Contractee Pa rty

2 Duration of the

Contract

The Contract will come into
effect on 27-May-2015 and

The Contract will come into
effect on 01-Oct-2014 and

will end after the approval
of the agreed output as per
section 1 of the confract or
a period of 365 days from
the date of the contract,
whichever is earlier.

will end after the approval
of the agreed output as per
section 1 of the contract or
a period of 365 days from
the date of the contract,
whichever is earlier.

The particulars of the transaction pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 and the Companies ...

{Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 are as under:




Monetary value and
particulars of the contract or
arrangement

CSLNG, e Particulars | L - Capital Advisory Contract -
1 Name of the Related Party intellecap Adwsory Services Private letted
2 dName of the Director or Key Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai, Mr. Anurag Agrawal and Mr.
Managerial Personnel whois | Sanjib Kumar Jha
related, if any
3 Nature of Relationship Ms. Swati Rai, wife of Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai is
interested as shareholder and Mr. Anurag Agrawal is
interested as director in Intellecap Advisory Services
Private Limited
4 Nature, Material Terms, Scope of Services:

¥ Phase | - Preparation of Investor Kit:

a. Refining of the existing business plan/financial
modet and preparatory work required to present
Client to prospective investors;

b. Compilation of Infermation Kit for investors that
might include all or some of the following:
Information Memorandum, introductory Flyer,
Financial Meodet and any other supporting
documents and or presentations as reguired for
raising funds for Client.

> Phase ll - Capital Advisory Services:

2. ldentification of suitable investors, creating a
teng list of investors and short list of investors;

b. Managing communication with all the investors
that would include the Investment Pitch, Peal
structuring and Negotiation support to the client;

c. Assistance in due diligence by potential investors;

d. Advice and execution of appropriate deal
structuring as per the needs and expectations of
the client and accounting for investor feedback;

e. Assistance in drafting the term sheet and
subscription agreement,

Remitneration and Payment Modalities:

Success Fee: Intellecap shall charge success fee as

follows:

a. Book value multiple less than or equal to 3.0x - The
Success Fee shall be 1.5% of the Equity Investment
Amount commitied by the Investor towards primary
issue of shares by existing shareholders if any,
{exclusive of Service Tax);

b. Book value multiple more than 3.0x - the Success Fee
shall be 2.0% of the Equity Investment Amount
committed by the investor towards primary issue of
shares by existing shareholders if any {exclusive of
Service Tax};

c. Book Value here is defined as the book value
calculated based an the audited financials of 31-Mar-
2015;

d. The Equity Investment Amount here is defined as the
sum of the total primary issue by new investors and




existing shareholders either upfront or as per a
deferred payout schedule agreed on between the
Investor and Client.

Duration of Contract:
The duration of the contract shall be for the period of one
year commencing from 27-May-2015.

5 Any other Information The availing of such Capital Advisory services from
retevant or impertant for the | intellecap Advisory Services Privaie Limited is in relation
members to take a decision to business enhancement and are towards the benefit of
on the proposed resolution the Company. The respective contract is entered on arm’s

length bhasis and zll factors relevant to the respective
contract have been considered by the Board. The Capy of
the above mentioned contract shall be available for
inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the
Company during the normal business hours {10 am to 6
pm) on all working days (except Saturdays) upto the date
of Annuat General Meeting of the Company.

The members are further informed that no member/s of the Company being a related party or
having any interest in the resolution as set out at item No. 13 shall be entitled to vote on this special
resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends the resolution set forth in item No. 13 for approval of the
Members.

Except the said interested Directors, no other director or Key Managerial Personnel or their
relatives, is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in passing of this resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors-
/ﬁ(’q—( 4 o
/’cﬁ’gn;:i

Company Secretary
{Mambership No.; A22880)

Hyderabad, 27*" May, 2015

Registered Office:

4" Floor, Building 8-2-682/1,

Banjara Hills Road no. 12,

Hyderabad - 500034, Andhra Pradesh.
CIN: U65910AP1998PLCOB8941




JAIN SONS FINLEASE LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
To the Members of Jain Sons Finlease Limited {intelleGrow]),

Your Directors have pleasure in submitting their Seventeenth Annual Report of the Company
together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended 315 March, 2015.

1. Financial Results:

ed | Previous: Year'ended.,
: 1'31-Mar-2014 {in Rs)) -
Net Sales / Income from Business Operations 7,92,98,552
Other Income 34,17,057 8,87,145
Total Income 20,84,79,362 8,01,85,697
Less Interest 7,06,02,823 1,50,98,796
Profit before Depreciation 13,88,76,539 6,50,86,901
Less: Depreciation 16,52,312 3,71,815
Profit after Depreciation and Interest 13,72,24,227 6,47,15,086
Less: Current Income Tax 2,31,50,9¢94 1,03,77,546
Less: Previous year adjustment of Income Tax - -
Less: Deferred Tax {35,67,116) {10,82,110)
Net Profit after Tax 38,466,983 11,487,417
Dividend {including Interim if any and final) - -
Net Profit after dividend and Tax 38,466,983 11,487,417
Amount transferred to General Reserve 38,466,983 11,487,417
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 44,072,135 13,298,549
Earnings per share (Basic) 3.56 1.21
Earnings per share {Diluted) 2.38 1.07

2. Dividend:

In the month of April, 2015 the company had declared an interim Dividend at the rate of 0.001% per
annum for the financial year 31-Mar-2015 to all Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible
Preference Shareholders of the company and the same has been paid to all the respective
shareholders.

No Final dividend has been recommended to the shareholders of the company for their approval.

3. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
{Management and Administration} Rules, 2014 and Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai, Chairman and Mr, Pradeep Pursnani, Nominee Director of the Company,
retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, has offered themselves
for re-appointment and your Board recommends their re-appointment.

During the year under review:
»  Mr. Debasish Mitter, Nominee Birector of the company, as a nominee of M/s. Michael and
Susan Dell Foundation had tendered his resignation as Nominee Director from the Board of;
company on 29-Sep-2014. Mr. Satyam Darmora was appointed on the Board as a No

Tel: +91-4G-4030 0200, Fax: +91-40-4030 0275

= -
Regd. Office : 4th Floor, Building 8-2-682/1, Banjara Hills Road No: 12, Hyderabad - 500034 indiw
*

Mumbai Office: 13C, Techniplex-ll IT Park, 6th Floor, Off Veer Savarkar Flyover, Goregaon {W), Mumbai - 400 062, IRdia

Tel: -91-22-6195 2700, Fax: +91-22-6195 2702, CIN : U65910AP1998P1.C08894 1, www.intellegrow.com
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Director of the company, as a neminee of M/s. Michael 2nd Susan Dell Foundation w.e.f. 29-
Sep-2014.

+  Ms. Dimple Sanghi, Nominee Director of the company, as @ nominee of M/s. Omidyar Metwork
had tendered her resignation as a Nominee Director from the Board of the company w.e.f. 09-
Jan-2015, Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran was appointed on the Board as an Additional
{Nominee} Director of the company, as a nominee of M/s. Omidyar Network w.e.f. 26-Mar-
2015,

The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy as an Additional
(Independent) Director of the Company w.ef. 27-May-2015 for a period of 5 years subject to
approval of shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Company has received notices
along with requisite deposit from a member of the Company under Section 160 of Companies Act,
2013 proposing their candidature for the office of Director of the Company. Your Board recommends
her appointment as an Independent Director of the company.

The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran as an Additional
(Mominee} Director of the Company w.e.f. 26-Mar-2015. The Company has received notices along
with requisite deposit from a member of the Company under Section 160 of Companies Act, 2013
proposing their candidature for the office of Director of the Company. Your Board recommends her
appointment as a Nominee Director of the company, as a nominee of M/s. Omidyar Netwark.

Mr. Rakesh Rewari and Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy have submitted their disclosures to the Board
that they fulfil all the requirements as stipulated in Section 149(6} of the Companies Act, 2013 so as
to qualify themselves to be appointed as Independent Directors under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant rules.

During the year under review, Mr. Sanjib Kumar Jha, Director & CEQ, Mr. Nitin Agrawal, Chief
Financial Officer and Mr. Chirag Desai, Company Secretary were appointed as Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company.

4. Review of Business Operations and Future Prospects:

The company stayed focussed at lending to Small and Growing Businesses as its mandated focus
area. Most of these were early stage businesses, either startups beginning to scaleup, or existing
businesses diversifying into new businesses including the companies running at small scale and now
starting ta scale up. We were able to service the needs of companies with limited operatienal and
financial track record with limited ability to provide hard collaterats. We continued to use detailed
due diligence in assessing projected cashflows as a surrogate to taking Securities for lending
coverage. Our focus continued with businesses making Social and Environmental Impact.

The company started the year with a portfolio of 38 Small and Growing businesses which had been
lent a total of Rs. 66¢r out of which Rs. 48¢r was outstanding. During the year, company disbursed a
total of Rs 132¢r in loans to companies. Qut of these, 26 were new companies and 33 were existing
portfolio companies. With this, the company has cumulatively disbursed Rs.200cr to 70 companies
and has Rs.136crore outstanding portfolio. The company has been able to continue to service the
growing debt needs of existing portfolio companies to some extent. At the same time, the company
has been able to prospect new entities into its partfolio.

The company continued to focus on a diversified sector and sub-sector approach — lending to 17
subsectors covering Financial Inclusion/ Clean Energy/ Healthcare/ Water and Sanitation/
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Agricultural supply chain / Education and businesses generating urban employment for low-income
community.

Company has consistently strengthened its internal capacitisation. On the team side, IntelleGrow has
grown from 7 people team in March 2014 to 24 people team in March 2015. More team members
are expected to get added as the scale as size of business grows. This is complemented by increasing
verticalisation and specialisation in functional teams. This has also helped in implementation of
various control processes with maker, checker, verifies and approver.

With team strengthening, the company intends to follow a 3 dimensional growth strategy —
+ Horizontal Expansion: with diversification into new Sectors and sub-sectors;
+ Diagonal Expansion: Product Diversification including off balance sheet structures;
s Vertical Expansion: Growing exposures within the existing portfolic companies with good
track record.

Most of the exposure by the company was through term debt with credit risk completely on
intelleGrow's Balance sheet. The size of exposure is also limited by the Networth of IntelleGrow
while some of these small and growing businesses require higher debt. We plan to leverage our
capability to assess these businesses to help them source more debt hesides our loans. This will heip
IntelleGrow diversify its service provision and also helg it improve its revenue profile from the
serviced companies with more fee income from them. Such services may include working as an
arranger, debt syndication, doing structured finance with partial guarantees etc. We however intend
to ensure sufficient Balance Sheet protection by staying with exposure narms which are currently
more conservative than proposed by the regulator.

Further, since the company has applied for the Small Finance Bank license in association with
IntelleCash, in an event of merger with IntelleCash, the current service of providing debt and credit
linkages ta Smali and Growing Businesses shall be retained as part of the merged entity.

5. Material changes and commitment if any affecting the financial position of the company
occurred between the end of the financial year to which this financial statements refate and the
date of the Report:

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred
between the end of the financial year to which this financial statemants relate on the date of this
report.

6. Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and company's operations in future:

There was no significant or material order was passed by any regulator or court or tribunal, which
impacts the going concern status of the Company or wifl have bearing on company's operations in
future.

7. Conservation of energy, techniology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo:

The information as required under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3} of
the Companies {Accounts} Rules, 2014 regarding conversation of energy, technology absorption are
not applicable as the company is not carrying on any manufacturing activity during the year. The
particulars regarding foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year under review are as
under:
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Sl Particulars . {InindianRupees) . -~ . -
e 2014-15 [ 204334
Total Expenditure in Foreign Currency 6,58,153.00 5,01,467.00

Total Earnings in Foreign Currency 4,25,23,254.00 3,16,27,042.00

8. Risks and Areas of Concern:

The Company has laid down a well-defined Risk Management Policy covering the risk mapping, trend
analysis, risk exposure, potential impact and risk mitigation process. A detailed exercise is being
carried out to identify, evaluate, manage and monitoring of both business and nan-business risk. The
Board periodically reviews the risks and suggests steps to be taken to control and mitigate the same
through a properly defined framework.

9. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments made under section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013:

The details of leans, guarantee or investment under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 is given
under Notes to Accounts of financial statements.

10. Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements made with related parties under section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013:

The particulars of contracts or arrangements made with related parties pursuant to section 188, in
Form ACC - 2 as prescribed under Companies {(Accounts} Rules, 2014 relating to Accounts of
Companies under the Companies Act, 2013, is annexed as Annexure - A with this report,

11. Explanation or comments on qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers
made by the Statutory Auditors and the Secretarial Auditor in their reports:

There was no qualifications made by the either by the Statutory Auditors or by Secretarial Auditor in
their respective reports. However, following two comments from the Independent Auditor’s report
are adverse:

Annexure to | Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, amounts

Independent
Auditor’'s
report. Point

(vii)(a)

employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth
tax, service fax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, have not been regularly deposited with the
appropriate authorities and there have been significant
delays in a large number of cases. Undisputed amounts
payable in respect thereof, which were outstanding at the
vear-end for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payabie are as follows:

menticned here are
not undisputed. We
are consulting with a
subject matter
specialist and would
follow his advice on
the same. We propose
to close the issue from
our side by Sep-2015.
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MName | Natu | Amount | Period | Due Date of
of the | re of | (T} ic Date Payment
statute | the which
dues the

amou

nt

relate

5
The Self- | %3,080,8 | Assess | 31 Not vyet
Incom | asses | 62 ment | March | paid
e-tax smen year 2014
Act, ttax 2014-
1961 15

Annexure to
Independent
Auditor’s

report. Paint

{ix}

The Company has defaulted in repayment of dues to
debenture-holders during the year. Interest on debentures
amounting to 6,105,329 due for payment on 1 January
2015, was paid by the Company on 2 fanuary 2015. The
Company has defaulted in repayment of dues to a financiai

institution (which include Scheduled Banks):

Name
the Bank

of

Amount (%)

Due date

Delay
days

Ratnakar
Bank
Limited

278,082

30-Sep-14

8

Ratnakar
Bank
Limited

1,094,673

31-fan-15

Ratnakar
Bank
Limited

11,111,111

23-Mar-15

Ratnakar Bank
instalment  payment
was delayed for Sep-
2014. While  the
transaction was
processed in time, it
got cancelled due to

technical error.
Prolonged holidays
(Gandhi Jayanti &
Dussera) and
concerned official on
leave (Mayank}

delayed its detection
and corrective action.
Rest two delays are
operational in nature
due to a holiday
wherein the payment
processed by Treasury
team was not credited
on the same day, but
after two days post

the holiday.

As  a matter of
caution, on  days
preceding the
holidays, the
payments are heing
processed early
morping  to  ensure

that these are not
delayed.
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12. Company’s policy relating to directors appointment, payment of remuneration and discharge
of their duties:

The Company’s policy relating to appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration,
Directors’ qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors and other related matters as
provided under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 is ahnexed as Annexure - B with this
report.

13. Annual Return:

The extracts of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rute 12 of the
Companies {Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is annexed as Annexure - C with this
report.

14, Particulars of employees:

The Information required under section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5(1) of the
Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014 are given below:

a. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of
the Company for the financial year
N on—executwe "Dlrectors-

Mir. Vineet 'Chandra Rai -
Mr. Rakesh Rewari -
Mr. Debasish Mitter {up to 30-Sep2014) -
Mr. Satyam Darmora {from 30-Sep-2014)} -
Ms. Dimple Sanghi (up to 08-Jan-2015} -
Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran {from 26-Mar-2015) -
Mr. Pradeep Pursnani -
Mr. Anurag Agrawal -

Mr.Sanjio Kumarsha — T eoss

b. The percentage increase in remuneration of each directors, Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, Company Secretary in the financial year:

. Directors, Chref'Exe utr"e__ﬁ)ff_lcer Chlef Fmancral Off:cer and Com;

-Secretary C -

T % ‘n crea SE m ._ 7

G e e e -_ﬁn-a_n-_rii'a["-:\jéhr'-
Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai -
Mr. Rakesh Rewari -
Mr. Debasish Mitter {up to 30-Sep2014} -
Mr. Satyam Darmora {from 30-Sep-2014) -
Ms. Dimple Sanghi {up to 09-Jan-2015) -
Ms. Anuradha Ramachandyran (from 26-Mar-2015) -
Mr. Pradeep Purshani -
Mr. Anurag Agrawal -
Mr. Sanjib Kumar Jha, Birector & CEOQ 26.75
Mr. Nitin Agrawal, Chief Financial Officer {joined on 26-Mar-2015)
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| Mr. Chirag Desai, Company Secretary (joined on 28-Apr-2014) ] ~_]

¢. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 37.50%
d. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company: 20 (as on 31-Mar-2015)

e. The explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration an company
performance: The increase in remuneration is in line with the market trends in the country. In
erder to ensure that remuneration reflects company performance, the perfarmance pay is also
linked to organisation performance, apart from an individual's performance.

f. Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personne] (KMP) against performance of
the company:

Aggregate remuneration of KMP in FY15 (Rs. in lakhs) 66.45
Revenue (Rs. in lakhs) 2094.78
Remuneration of KMPs (as % of revenue) 3.17
Prefit before Tax (PBT) (Rs. in lakhs) 611.32
Remuneration of KMP (as % of PBT) 10.87

g. Variations in the market capitalisation of the Company, price earnings ratio as at the clasing date
of the current financial year and previous financial year: Not Applicable, as the equity shares of
the company are listed on any stock exchange. Only NCDs of the company are listed on the
Bombay Stock Exchange.

h. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the fast financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in
the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point put is there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

The average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than
managerial personnel in the last financial year is 21% while percentile increase in the managerial
remuneration is 19.9% in the last financial year.

i. Compar:son of each remuneratlon of the KMP agamst the performance of the Company

Remuneration in FY15 (Rs. |
in lakhs)

Revenue (Rs. in kakhs) 2094.78
Remuneration as % of 2.66 0.03 0.48
revenue
Profit before Tax (PBT) 611.32
(Rs. in lakhs)
Remuneration (as % of 9.13 0.11 1.63
PBT)

j-  The key parameters for any variable compenent of remuneration availed by the directors: Not
Applicable
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k. The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not
directors but receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the year: None

I. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company: The
Company affirms remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company.

m. The statement containing particulars of employees as required under section 197{12) of the Act
read with Rule 5{2) of the Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel}
Rules, 2014: Not Applicable

15. Number of Board Meetings conducted during the year under review:

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company / business policy and
strategy apart from other Board business. A tentative annual calendar of the Board and Committee
Meetings is informed to the Directors in advance to facilitate them to plan their schedule and to
ensure meaningful participation in the meetings. However, in case of a special and urgent business
need, the Board’s approval is taken by passing resolutions through circulation, as permitted by law,
which are confirmed in the subsequent Board meeting.

The notice of Board meeting is given well in advance to all the Directors of the Company. The agenda
of the Board / Commitiee meetings is circulated prior to the date of the meeting. The agenda for the
Board and Committee meetings includes detailed notes on the items to be discussed at the meeting
to enable the Directors te take an informed decision.

The Board met six (6) times during the year, the details of which are as given below:

~Sl:-| Date of Board Meeting: | .Venue of the Board Meeting..| . .~ Name of Director’s

Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai
Mr. Rakesh Rewari

Mr. Debasish Mitter
Mr.-Pradeep Pursnani
Ms. Dimple Sanghi

Mr. Sanjibh Kumar Jha

13A, Techniplex-Hl IT Park, &%

Floor, Off. Veer Savarkar
Flyover, Goregaon (West),
Mumbai — 400082.

1 | 16-Apr-2014

2 25-Aug-2014 134, Techniplex-l IT Park, 6%
Floor, Off. Veer Savarkar
Flyover, Goregaon (West),
Mumbai — 400062,

. Vineet Chandra Rai
ivir. Rakesh Rewari

Ms. Dimple Sanghi

Mr. Anurag Agrawal
Mr. Sanjib Kumar Jha

3 25-Sep-2014 13A, Techniplex-l IT Park, 6t
Floor, Off. Veer Savarkar
Flyover, Goregaon {West},
Mumbai — 400062,

Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai
Mr. Saniib Kumar Jha
Mr. Anurag Agrawal

WU R WN e e W N e
=
=

4 25-Sep-2014 13A, Techniplex-It IT Park, 6%
Floor, Off. Veer Savarkar
Flyover, Goregaon {West},
Mumbai — 400062.

Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai
M. Sanjib Kumar Jha
Mr. Anurag Agrawal
Mr. Debasish Mitter

. Pradeep Pursnani
Mr. Rakesh Rewari

Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai
Mr. Sanjib Kumar fha
Myr. Anurag Agrawal

5 24-Dec-2014 13C, Techniplex-U IT Park, 6%
Fioor, Off. Veer Savarkar
Flyover, Goregaon {Waest),

WNEIR U AN e
=
=
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Mr. Rakesh Rewari
Mr.Satyam Darmora
Ms. Dimple Sanghi

Mumbai — 400062.

Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai

. Sanjih Kumar lha

Mr. Anurag Agrawal

Mr. Rakesh Rewari

Mr. Pradeep Pursnani

Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran

6 26-Mar-2015 13C, Techniplex-Il {T Park, 6"
Floor, Off. Veer Savarkar
Flyover, Goregaon {Waest),
Mumbai — 400062,

AN oI o A
=4
=

16. Directors Responsibility Statement:

Your Directors, to the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and
explanations obtained by them and as required under Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013
state that:

(8) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation retating to material departures;

(b} the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of
the company for that period;

(c} the direciors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(e} the directors have laid down internzl financial controls to be followed by the company and that
such internal financial contrels are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(f} the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

17. Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies:

The Company does hot have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company. Intellectual Capital
Advisory Services Private Limited is the holding company of your company.

18. Public Beposits:

Curing the year under review, the company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of
section 73 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies {Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 2014,

18. Statutory Auditors:

M/s. Watker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, {Firm Registration No. 001076N) were re-
appointed as Statutory Auditors to hold office for a period of three years in the Annual General
Meeting held on 29-5ep-2014. The Company has received a letter from them to the effect that they
are willing to continue as Statutory Auditors and if re-appointed, their re-appointment would be
within the limits prescribed under Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and they are not
disqualified from being appeinted as Auditors.
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Your Directors recommends the confirmation of the appointment of M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co LLP,
Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditors of the Company te hold office from the conclusion of
the ensuing Annual General Meeting upto the conclusion of next Annual General Meeting of the
Company and to audit financial statements for the financial year 2015-16.

20. Disclosure of Composition of Audit Committee and providing Vigit Mechanism:

The Audit Committee of the Company reviews the reports to be submitted with the Board of
Directors with respect to auditing and accounting matters. It also supervises the Company’s internal
control and finandial reporting process.

As on March 31, 2015, the Audit Committee comprises of Mr. Pradeep Pursnani, Mr. Rakesh Rewari
and Mr. Anurag Agrawal.

Mr. Rakesh Rewari is the Chairman of Audit Committee of the Company. My. Chirag Desai, Company
Secretary of the Company, acis as Secretary of the Audit Committee.

The Cormpany shall established Vigit Mechanism to deal with instance of fraud and mismanagement,
if any. The mechanism shalt also provide for adequate safeguards against victimization of directors
and employees whao avail of the mechanism and also provide for direct access te the Chairman of the
Audit Committee in the exceptional cases. The Company shall also provide direct access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee on reporting issues concerning the interests of co-employees and
the Company and we affirm that during the financial year 2014-15, no employee or director was
denied access to the Audit Committee.

21. Shares:

a. Buy back of securities:
The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review.

b. Sweat Equity:
The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.

¢. Bonus Shares:
No Bonus Shares were issued during the year under review.

d. Employees Stock Option plan:

The Company has not provided any Stock Option Scheme to the employees during the year under
review.

e, Paid-up share Capital:

During the year under review, the company has issued and allotted 1 {one) Eguity Share to ON
Mauritius. As on 31-Mar-2015, the paid up share capital of the company is Rs. 38,81,88,280/-
{Rupees Thirty Eight Crore Eighty One Lakhs Eighty Eight Thousand Two hundred and Eighty only)
divided into 1,08,19,348 [One Crore Eight Lakhs Nineteen Thousand Three Hundred and Forty Eight}
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- {Rupees Ten oniy); 3,00,000 (Three Lakhs) Compulsory Convertible
Preference Shares - Class B1 of RS. 100/- {Rupees One Hundred only) each and 24,99,948 {Twenty
Four takhs Ninety Nine Thousand Nine Hundred and Forty Eight} Compulsory Convertible Preference
Shares - Ctass B2 of RS. 100/- (Rupees One Hundred only) each.
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22. Secretarial Audit Report:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Secretarial Audit Report
received from M/s. Manish Baldeva & Co., Company Secretaries, Mumbai is annexed and forming
part of this report.

23, Internal Audit:

The Company has appointed M/s. Anuj 5. Sharma & Company, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, as
its ternal Auditor. Internat Auditor has given their reports on half vearly basis to the Audit
Committee.

Based on the report of internatl audit function, corrective action in their respective areas and thereby
strengthen the controls. Significant audit observations and corrective actions thereon are presented
to the Audit Committee of the Board.

24. Committees of the Board:

During the year under review, in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, the Board had re-
constituted and expanded scope of some of its Committees and had also formed Corporate
Governance and Executive Committee. There are currently four Committees of the Board, as follows:

1. Audit and Compliance Committee;

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee;

3. Risk Committee;

4. Corporate Governance and Executive Commitiee

The composition and humber of meetings held during the vear under review of the above said
committees are as under:

1 Audit and Compliance 1. Mr. Anurag Agrawal One 25-Aug-2014
Committee 2. Mr. Pradeep Pursnani
3. Mr. Rakesh Rewari
2 Nomination and 1. Mr. Rakesh Rewari Two 19-fun-2014; and
Remuneration 2. Mr. Anurag Agrawal 26-Mar-2015
Committee 3 Mr. Pradeep Pursnani
3 Risk Cormmittee 1. Mr. Rakesh Rewari Three 29-Apr-2014;
2. Mr. 5anjib Kumar Jha 14-Jui-2014;
3. Mr. Debasish Mitter 27-0ct-2014; and
27-Nov-2014;
4 Corporate Governance 1. Mr. Vineet Chandra | One 26-Mar-2015
and Executive Rai
Committee 2. Mir. Sanjib Kumar Jha
3. Mr. Anurag Agrawal
4. Mr. Rakesh Rewari
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The Charters of the above said committees are annexed as Annexure - D with this Report.

25, Acknowledgements:

Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to bankers, business associates, consultants, and
various Government Authorities for their continued support extended to your Companies activities
during the vear under review. Your Directors also acknowledges gratefully the shareholders for their
support and confidence reposed on your company.

;.
For and ori behalf of the Board of Directors
b -

[

Vineet Chandra Rai Sanjib Kimar Jha
Chairman Director & CEQ
{DIN: 00606290) {DIN: 03402908}

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 27" May, 2015
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FORM ACC- 2

{Pursuant to clause {h) of sub-section {3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8({2) of the Companies

{Accounts) Rules, 2014

Form for disclosure of particulars of contract / arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including

certain arm’s tength transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s fength basis: Not Applicable

passed in general meeting as reguired under first
proviso to Section 188

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of | NIL
relatianship

{b) Nature of contracts / arrangements /| NIL
iransactions

{c} Duration of the contracts / arrangements / | Nit
transactions

{d) Salient terms of the contracts or | NIL
arrangements or transactions including the
value, if any

{e} Justification for entering into such contract / | NiL
arrangement or transaction

{f} Date(s} of approval of the Board NIL
(g) Amount paid in advance, if any NI
{h} Date on which the special resolution was | NIL

2.i. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis: The following three
contracts or arrangements or transactions are at arm’s length basis:

(a} Name(s) of the related party and nature of
refationship

Intellectual Capital Advisory Services Private
Limited

My. Vineet Rai and Mr. Anurag Agrawal are the
common directors and Mr. Sanjib Kumar Jha is
the shareholder in intellectual Capital Advisory
Services Private Limited

(b) MNature of coniracts / arrangements /
transactions

Capital Advisory Contract

{c} Duration of the contracts / arrangementis /
transactions

The duration of contract shall ba for the period
of one vear commencing from 1% day of
October, 2014 to 30" September, 2015

(d} Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transactions including the
value, if any

Scope of Services:

Intellecap Investment Advisory offering for

Client would consist of two phases:

Phase | - Preparation of Investor Kit:

i. Refining of the existing business plan/financial
model and preparatory work reguired to
present Client to prospective investors;

ii. Compilation of Information Kit for investors

are as: Information

that might include all or some of %tfhe
6 g‘J i/
- .
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Phase Il — Capital Advisory Services:

Remuneration and Payment Modalities:
Success Fee: Intellecap shall charge success fee
as follows:

I

i. Managing communication with all the

iv. Advice and execution of appropriate deat

. The Equity Investment Amount here is

tntroductory Flyer, Financial Model and any
other supporting documents and or
presentations as reguired for raising funds
for Chient.

Identification of suitable investors, creating
a long list of investors and short list of
investors;

investors that would include the Investment
Pitch, Deal structuring and Negotiation
support to the company;

Assistance in due diligence by potential
investors;

structuring as per the needs and
expectations of the company and
accounting for investor feedback;
Assistance in drafting the term sheet and
subscription agreement.

Book value multipie less than or egual to
3.0x - The Success Fee shall be 1.5% of the
Equity Investment Amount committed by
the Investor towards primary issue of shares
as well as secondary sale of shares by
existing sharehalders if any, (exclusive of
Service Tax);

Book value muitiple more than 3.0x - the
Success Fee shall be 2.0% of the Equity
Investment Amount committed. by the
Investor towards primary issue of shares as
well as secondary sale of shares by existing
shareholders if any (exclusive of Service Tax);
Book Value here is defined as the book value
calcutated based on the audited financials of
March 31, 2014;

defined as the sum of the total primary issue
as well as a secondary sale of Client shares (if
any) by existing shareholders either upfront
or as per a deferred payout schedule agreed
on between the Investor ang Client;

For any debt capital raising services,
Intellecap will work an a success fee basis
linked to the amount of debt capital raised.

”

The gquantum of success fees_fﬁf;&iﬁﬁ:}'\f,‘?ébt

LR i NS
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raised will be 0.5% of the debt investment
amount;

vi. The Debt Investment amount is defined as
the total amount of debt being raised as part
of the overall capital raise.

passed in general meeting as required under first
proviso to Section 188

(e} Date{s) of approval of the Board 25-Aug-2014
(f) Amount paid in advance, if any Nil
{g) Date on which the special resolution was | 29-5ep-2014

2.ii.

(a} Name(s) of the related party and nature of
refatienship

intellectual Capital Advisory Services Private
Limited

Mr. Vineef Rai and Mr. Anurag Agrawal are the
common directors and Mr, Sanjibh Kumar Jha is
the shareholder in Intellectual Capital Advisory
Services Private Limited

{b) Nature of contracts / arrangements /[
transactions

Consuliancy Agreement

{c} Duration of the contracts / arrangements /
transactions

The duration of contract shall be for the period
of one year commencing frem 1% day of
October, 2014 to 31 March, 2015

{d) Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transactions including the
vaiue, if any

Objectives to be met through this Consultancy

Agreement:

The company will get exclusive visibility and

positioning to meet the following objectives:

i. Visibility: Widespread branding and visibility
for company among relevant audience;

ii. Identifying viable deal fiow pipeline:
Qpportunity to showcase company funding
options to sustainable social enterprises
working across 5 high impact sectors:
Agriculture, Food and Rural Business | Clean
Energy & Clean Technology | Education &
Vocational Training | Health, Water and
Sanitation | Technology for Development;

iii. Create sustained impact on development of
early stage enterprises through capacity
building opportunities.

Comipensation:

The Company shall pay to Intellecap INR

12,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Twelve takhs Only),

exclusive of at applicable taxes.

passed in general meeting as required under first
proviso to Section 188

{e) Date(s) of approval of the Board 25-Aug-20i4
(f) Amount paid in advance, if any Nil
{(g) Date on which the special resolution was | 29-Sep-2014
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JAIN SONS FINLEASE LIMITED

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

introduction:

In pursuance of the Company’s policy to consider human rescurces as its invaluable assets, to pay
equitable remuneration to all Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)and Employees of the
company, to harmonize the aspirations of human resources consistent with the goals of the company
and in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, this policy on nomination and remuneration
of Directors, KMP and Senior Management has been formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee {NRC”) and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Composition of Committee:
1. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall consist of three or more non-executive
directors out of which not less than one-half shall be independent directors.

2. The Chairperson of the Company {whether executive or non-executive} may be appointed as a
member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee but shall not chair the Committee,

Objective:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and this Policy shall be in compliance with Section 178
of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto and Guidelines of Reserve
Bank of India. The objective of this policy is to lay down a framework in relation to remuneration of
directors, KMP, senior management personnel and other employees.

The Key Ohjectives of the Committee would be:
1.1. To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, KMP and Senior
Management.

1.2. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, KMP
and other employees.

1.3. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Director and the Board.

1.4. To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary repart to the
Board for further evaluation of the Board.

1.5. To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, KMP and Senior
Management.

1.6. To provide to KMP and Senicr Management reward linked directly to their effort, performance,
dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s aperations.

1.7. To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented
managerial persons and create competitive advantage.
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1.8. To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan.
1.9. To assist the Board in fulfilling responsibilities.

1.10 To implement and monitor policies and processes regarding principles of corporate govarnance.

Applicability:

a) Directors (Executive and Non-Executive)
b) KmPp

c) Senior Management Personnel

Definitions:
“Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there under, as amended from time to time.

“Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.
“Directors” mean Directors of the Company.

“Key Managerial Personnel” means

I Managing Director, or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence, a Whole-time
Director; '

ii.  Chief Financial Officer;

iil. Company Secretary; and

iv.  such other officer as may be prescribed.

“Senior Management” means Senior Management means the personne! of the company who are
members of its core management team excluding Board of Directors comprising all members of
management one level below the executive directors, including the functional heads.

Unless the context otherwise reguires, words and expressions used in this policy and not defined
herein but defined in the Companies Act, 2013 as may be amended from time to time shall have the

meaning respectively assigned to them therein.

Policy for Appointment and Removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management:

1. Appointment Criteria and Qualifications:

a} The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of
the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to
the Board his / her appointment.

b} The Committee shall undertake a process of due diligence to determine the suitability of the
person for appointment/continuing to hold appointment as a director on the Board, based upon
qualification, expertise, track record, integrity and other ‘fit and proper’ criteria.

€) A person should possess adequate gualification, expertise and experience for the position he / she
is considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification




d)

f)

g)

h)
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expertise and experience possessed by a person is sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned
position.

The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-time Director
whao has attained the age of seventy vears. Provided that the term of the person holding this
position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by
passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such
motion indicating the justification for extension of appeintment beyond seventy years.

The Company shall appoint Independent/Non-Executive Directors nomtinated to the Board should
be between 35 to 70 years of age.

The Company shall obtain necessary information and declaration from the proposed/existing
directors as per the format provided under the Companies Act, 2013 and Guidelines issued by
Reserve Bank of India from time to time.

The Company shall obtained annually as on 31% March a simple declaration from the Directars the
information already provided has not undergone change and where there is any change, requisite
details are furnished by them forthwith.

The Company shall ensure in public interest that the nominated/elected directors execute the
deeds of covenanis in the Format provided under the Guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India
from time to time.

2. Term [ Tenure:

a)

b)

Managing Director/Whole-time Director:

The Company shall appeint or re-appoint any person as its Executive Chairman, Managing Director
or Executive Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be
made earlier than one year before the expiry of term.

Independent Director:

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of
the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the
Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.

No Independent Director shall hold office for mere than two consecutive terms of upto maximum
of 5 years each, but such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of
three years of ceasing to become an Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director
shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company
in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly.

At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards
on which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an
Independent Director and three listed companies as an Independent Director in case such person is
serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed company or such other number as may be pre

under the Act. \
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3. Evaluation:

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel at regular interval {yearly).

4. Removal:

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable Act, rules
and regulations there under, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in
writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management Persorine subject to the provisions and
compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations.

5. Retirement:

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of
the Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the
Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise even

after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.

Policy for Remuneration to Directors/KMP/Senior Management Personnel:-

1. Remuneration te Managing/Whole-time / Executive / Managing Director, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel:

The Remuneration/ Compensation/ Commission etc. to be paid to Director / Managing Director etc.
shall be governed as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any
other enactment for the time being in force.

2. Remuneration to Non- Executive [ Independent Director:

The Non-Executive Independent Director may receive remuneration / compensation / commission as
per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The amount of sitting fees shall be subject to ceiling/ limits
as provided under Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any ather enactment for the
fime being in force.

Duties in Relation to Nomination Matters:

The duties of the Committee in relation to namination matters include:

* Ensuring that there is an appropriate induction in place for new Directors and members of Senior
Management and reviewing its effectiveness;

s Ensuring that on appointment to the Board, Non-Executive Directors receive g formal letter of
appeintment in accordance with the Guidelines provided under the Act;

s |dentifying and recommending Directors who are to be put forward for retirement by rotation;

+ Determining the appropriate size, diversity and composition of the Board;
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» Developing a succession plan for the Board and Senior Management and regularly reviewing the
plan;

* Evaluating the performance of the Board members and Senior Management in the context of the
Company's performance from husiness and compliance perspective;

s Making recommendations ta the Board concerning any matters relating to the continuation in
office of any Director at any time including the suspension or termination of service of an Executive
Director as an employee of the Company subject to the provision of the law and their service
contract.

¢ Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Cemmittee;

« Recommend any necessary changes to the Board;

» Scrutinize the declarations received from directors and based on the information provided in the
signed declaration, the Committee shall decide on the acceptance or otherwise of the Directors,
where considered necessary;

« (Considering any other matters, as may be requested by the Board.

Duties in Relation To Remuneration Matters:

The duties of the Committee in relation to remuneration matters include:

¢ Considering and determining the Remuneration Policy, based on the performance and also bearing
in mind that the remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract retain and motivate members
of the Board and such other factors as the Committee shall deem appropriate all elements of the
remungration of the membaers of the Board.

* Approving the remuneration of the Senior Management including KMP of the Company
maintaining a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance
gbjectives appropriate to the working of the Company.

s Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee,

+ Considering any other matters as may be requested by the Board.

Review and Amendment:
i.  The NRC or the Board may review the Paolicy as and when it deems necessary.

i. The NRC may issue the guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and manual in
supplement and better implementation to this Policy, if it thinks necessary.

iii.  This Policy may be amended or substituted by the NRC or by the Board as and when reguired
and also by the Compliance Officer where there is any statutory changes necessitating the
change in the policy.
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Annexure € — Extract of Annual Return

Form No. MGT-8
Extract of Annual Return as on financial year ended as on 31-Mar-2015

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. Registration and Other Details:

SI. No. | Particulars

1 CIN U65910AP1993PLC0O8BI41

2 Registration Date 05-Feh-1998

3 Name of the company Jain Sons Finlease Limited

4 Address of the Registered office and 4% gloor, Building 8-2-682/1, Banjara Hills

contact details Road No.12, Hyderabad - 500034,

Tel: 022-61952700

5 Whether listed Company Yes (Non-Convertible Debentures are
Listed with BSE)

6 Name, Address and Contact details of Sharepro Services {India) Private Limited

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

13AB Samhita Warehousing Complex, 2
Floor, Sakinaka Telephone Exchange lane,
Sakinaka, Andheri (East), Mumbai—
400072,

. Principal Business Activities of the company:

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the tota! turnover of the company shall be

stated:
Sl. No. | Name and Description of main | NIC  Code of the | % to total turnover of the
products/services Product/Service company
1 Financial Services 804.9 100%

lil. Particulars of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies: The Company does not have any

holding, subsidiary and associate companies.
Si. | Name and Address CIN/GLN Holding % of Applicable
No. of the Company /Subsidiary Equity section
JAssociate shares
held
NA | NA MNA NA NA
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Annexure [ — Scope of Committees

Scope of Committees:

Given below are the various committees proposed of the Board of the Company. This document details
the scope of the various committees. The purpose of the committees is to have more focused oversight
on the respective areas for better corporate governance. The following 7 (seven) committees and their
scope are in line with the Companies act, 2013, RBI Guidelines and Industry best practices:

The scope or any of the authorizations here, if repugnant with the constitutional documents of the
company, ar any changed regulatory norms, shall be over-ruled by the constitution documents and
changed regulatory norm, as applicable from time to time.

1} AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD

Internal

d.

To oversee the internal audit, compliance and financial reporting process and ensuring correct,
adequate and credible disclosure of financial information, at stipulated frequency (monthly,
quarterly, annually) as per extant regulatory & statutory guidelines.

b. To examine the efficacy of audit functions and systems and suggesting steps on a periodic basis
{quarterly, half yearly) for its improvement.

c. To report, on a quarterly basis, the key audit findings for the quarter, as well as the actions
taken report on the same for previous quarters to the Board of the Campany.

d. To do valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

e. To evaluate internal financial controls

f.  To monitor the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters

g. To review and recommend accounting policies and treatment — including decisions regarding
write-offs. -

h. To get Infarmation Systems Audit conducted and track implementation of accepted
recommendations/ corrective action.

External

a. To facilitate in smooth conduct of audits by external agencies, Statutory Auditors, Reserve Bank
of India {RBI}, lenders and any other external auditors as appointed by the Company or any
other stakeholder {lenders, sharehoiders, regulators, government etc.)

b. To review with management, verifying and recommending adoption of quarterly, half yearly and
annual accounts to Board of the company with special emphasis on accounting policies and
practices, provisioning norms adopted by the company and any amendments adopted during
the year, adherence to capital adequacy norms, compliance with accounting standard and other
requirements concerning financial statements that may arise.

¢. To report, on a guarterly basis, the key findings of the quarter, as well as the action taken report
on the same for pravious quarters, to the Board of Directors.

d. To establish procedures for receipt and treatment of complaints regarding accounting and

Compliance

auditing matters and engage independent counsel, if required, for such conflict resolution and
to update the Board of the Company on the status of the same, every quarter;
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a. To prepare a calendar detailing the list of compliances/ covenants that needs to be monitored
and the frequency of its reporting to the Board of the Company as well as the regulatory
agencies and the stakeholders.

b. To review statement of significant related party transactions and examination of the reasons for
substantial defaults, if any, in payment to stakeholders.

c. To review compliance within stipulated statutory and regulatory requirements particularly in
relation to financial management and reporting.

d. To review compliance of various inspections and audit reports of internal, concurrent and
statutory auditors and commenting on the action taken report prepared by the management
and ensuring submission to the Board of the Company from time to time — classified under
heads for major/ material and minor and also set timelines if the compliance is still to be met.

e. To review the consolidated compliance report and the final accounting system for the financial
vear before it is submitted to the Board of the Company for adoption.

f. To internalize guidelines issued by the regulator specifically for the NBFCs or any other
guidelines as may be relevant to the Company and monitor adherence to the same.

Administrative

a. To recommend appointment and removal of external auditors on company’s reguest, or as
mandated by the regulators, lenders or other stakeholders.

b. To review and recemmend a scope of audit on the basis of requirements and reviewing the
policies, procedures, technigues and findings of such audits.

c. To oversee that contracted fees are paid to the various audit firms, at stipulated frequency on
receipt of their reports.

d. To establish procedures for receipt and treatment of complaints regarding accounting and
auditing matters and engage independent counsel, if required, for such conflict resolution.
Updating the Board of the Company on the status of the same, every quarter.

2) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD:

Nomination
a. To guide and assist the Board and work out a policy and implement it besides monitoring
progress in refation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel {KMP},
Senior Management and Credit Committee members.
i.  Torecommend to the Board appointment of directors. To develop a succession pian for
the Board and {o regularly review the plan
ii. To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report
1o the Board for further evatuation of the Board.
iii. To formulate the criteria for determining gualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director in line with the prevailing regulatory guidelines.
iv.  Torecommend appointments of senior management to the Board of the company.
b. To review and advise the management on the organization structure, including creating a two
tire organization structure for smooth succession planning and operational backups.
¢. To objectively examine the annual manpower plan in refation to the business plan of the
company and to examine management recommendations regarding manpower»- 1d and
suggest corrective action, if required. '
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Remuneration

a. To recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, KMP and other
employees and Credit Committee members.

b. To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, KMP and Senior
Management and Credit Committee members.

c. To provide to KMP and Senior Management reward linked directly to their effort, performance,
dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s operations.

d. To evaluate and approve the compensation packages of above mentioned persons with
particular reference to fixed and variable pay {including bonuses and Employees Stock Options).

e. To guide the management in developing a balanced remuneration policy with no biases and

focus and enhancing performance drivers and motivation levels of the employees with a view to
attract, retain, promote and groom/ train employees. This shall also include considering grant of
stock options to employees, reviewing compensation levels of the employees vis- a- vis other
NBFCs and industry in general and create competitive advantage.

3} RISK COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD:

Risk Control

d.

b.

To review company’s risk management policies in relation to various risks (credit, market,
liquidity, operational and reputation risk}
To review the risk return profile of the Company, Capital adequacy based on risk profile of the
company’s balance sheet, business continuity plan and disaster recovery plan, key risk indicators
and significant risk exposures and implementations of enterprise risk management.
To hold such risk reviews to ensure adequate monitoring as may be felt necessary by the
internal as well as external stakeholders and to appraise the Boacd of the Company on a periodic
basis, This shall caver:
i. To review performance of credit risk in the business and portfolio using risk assessment
tools
ii. To review and approve the risk rating tool, performance of porifolic on the tool and
review the tool's efficacy periodically
iii. To review stress in portfolio, and recommend corrective measures and policy level
changes based on portfolic performance
iv.  To review performance against the exposure norms and make recommendations to the
board based on outlook of business
To give oversight to the Credit Committee (CC) and review and take note of minutes of CC
meetings, Risk Committee at its discretion may call one or any of the CC members when they
feel it is desired for any specific discussions.
Review portfolio against the exposure norms and credit delegation and give approvals based on
authority delegated by the Board. When the portfolio deviates from the credit quality metric as
per the business plan (loan loss provisioning and write-off as per the approved budget), then the
CC will have discretion to limit approvals 1o some of the areas showing stresses.

Fraud Control and Monitoring

d.

To monitar and review all frauds that may have occurred in the company and involves an
amount of Rs. 0.1 million and above or as decided from time to time. T
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To report such frauds and other flag-offs to stakeholders atong with the extent of losses. This
would include reviewing and recommending a calendar of reporting frauds and the remedial
measures taken, to the Board of the Company.

To conduct a root cause analysis and identify the systemic lacunae, if any, that may have
facilitated perpetration of the fraud and put in place measures to rectify the same. Also, to
ascertain reasons for delay in detection of such frauds, if any.

To ensure the staff accountability is examined at all levels in all the cases of frauds and actions,
if required, is completed quickly without loss of time.

To review of efficacy of remedial actions taken to prevent recurrence of frauds, such as
strengthening internal controls and putting in place other measures as may be considered
relevant 1o strengthen preventive measure.

Vigil Mechanism

a.

b.

To recommend Vigil Mechanism to the board and monitor its progress and implementation and
efficacy and recommend changes to the same from time to time.

To ensure that the Vigilance Mechanism is adequate for the directors and employees to report
their genuine concerns. Such Vigil Mechanism should provide adequate safeguards against
victimizatian of persons who use such mechanism and they should have a direct access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee in appropriate cases.

4) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD:

The Executive Committee serves as an administrative committee of the Board to facilitate approval of
certain operational corporate actions that do not require consideration by the full Board. in normal
course of business, Fxecutive Committee is delegated with following authorisations -

a.

To make applications for obtaining licenses, registrations, connections, clearances, services etc.
and to authorize/appoint company directors/employees/officers for signing applications,
returns, forms, bonds, agreements, documents, papers etc. and for representing Company
before the authorities under various Laws including but not limited to Corporate Laws, industrial
Laws, Tax Laws, Labour Laws and other business laws applicable to the Company in respect of all
present and future offices of the Company for compliance of all provisions, rules, clauses,
regulations, directives and other related matters under the said Laws, which may be applicable
to the Company.

To open/close accaunt with any bank and to authorize and reauthorize any employee of the
Company to operate the account.

To authorize company person(s} for execution of documents, including loan documents and
affixing commaon seal of the company thereon, if required.

To invest funds of the company in the Fixed Deposits to the exient necessary to avail credit
facilities/ loans from the Banks/ Financial Institutions etc. and to invest surplus/ idle funds in
liguid funds {t.e. mutual funds etc.) for short term as per the Board approved investment policy
of the company.

To incur capital expenditure outside the annual business plan up to a himit of Rs.10 lakhs
between two board meetings.

To apply for telephone connection or to disconnect.




Annexure D —Scope of Committees

Delegation of borrowing powers

g.

To apoply for loan and hypothecate book debts of the Company at such terms and conditions as
may be decided by the committee from time to time within the borrowing powers defegated by
Shareholders to the board and board to the Executive Committee (documented below).

To apply for portfolio sell-down or securitization within the limits approved by the board and
the shareholders at such terms and conditions as may be decided by the committee from time
to time, subject to reporting to the board in the next board meeting.

To review and recommend, seek and operate borrowing and investment Hmits delegated from
the board (subject to delegation by Shareholders to the Board in the latest AGM/ EGM)

i.  To borrow the moneys subject to a maxirnum of Rs. 3G Crare per facility/ loan,

ii. To sel or securitise portfolio of the Company upto a limit of Rs. 20 crore per sanction.

iii.  To purchase book debts or securitized paper of other Companies/ SPVs upto a limit of
10% of networth of company per transaction aggregating to not more than 25% of
netwroth as on date of reckoning.

iv.  Toissue Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD) upto a limit of Rs. 50 crore per sanction.

The terms of all such transactions — including the term loans, securitization, asset sale, or NCD
issuance shouid be within limits approved by the board.

Summary of each of such sale, securitization, purchase, subscription of securitized paper should
he placed before the board in next ensuing board meeting.

Emergency response
The Executive Committee exercise powers of the Board in the event that an emergency or other
time sensitive matter arises and in it not practicable to assembie the entire Board.

Corporate Governance

d.

To Implement and moanitor policies and processes regarding principles of corporate governance.

h. To review the status of company on various corporate governance related norms, guidelines and

industry best practices and recommend action to the Board and to the Management to 1mpr0ve
the practices. ger T
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2015

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Jain Sons Finlease Limited
R-2-682/1, 4" Floor,

Road No.12, Banjara Hills,
Hyderabad-500034, Andhra Pradesh

| have conducted the cecretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. Jain Sons Finlease Limited (hereinafter called the
Company}. secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for

evaluation the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the infarmation provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during +he conduct of Secretarial audit, | hereby
report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 317 March 2015 (‘Audit Period’) generally complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and gther records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31" March, 2015 according to the

provisions of:

i The Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
i, The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder (not
applicable to the Company during the Audit period);
i The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
iv.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
to the extent of Foreign Direct imvestment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings (not applicable to the Company during the Audit period);
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v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange

Board of India, 1992 (*SEBI Act'):

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (not applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

b The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992 (not applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

¢. The »Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009 (not applicable to the Company during the Audit
period);

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase scheme) Regulations, 2009,andThe Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 notified on 28"
October 2014 (not applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008,

£ The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with the client,

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009 (not applicable to the Company during the Audit period), and;

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998
{not applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

vi.  Other laws, including the law relating 0 Non-Banking Financial Companies to the extent
applicable to the Company as per representation made by the Company.

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clause of the following:

(i) secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (not
natified hence not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(ii) The Listing agreement for Debt Securities entered into by the Company with BSE
Limited.

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act,
rules, Regulations, Guidelines, standards etc. mentioned above except non filing / delayed filing of
forms with RoC.

| further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non —Executive Directors and Independent Directors, except appointment of appropriate
number of Independent Directors as required under the provisions of Section 149(4) of the Act. The
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changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice s given to all directors to schedule the Board Meeting, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for

meaningful pa rticipation at the meeting.

All decisions at Roard Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded
i the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors of Committees of the Board, as the case

may be.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and gperations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable

laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

| further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and
indirect tax laws, has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same have heen subject to review
by statutory financial audit and other designated nrofessionals.

| further report that during the audit period. :

The Company has icsued and allotted 1942 and 2400 Rated Secured Listed Redeemable Non-
Convertible Debentures of Rs.1,00,000/- each on private placement basis and are listed on BSE

Limited:
The Company has passed resolution for approving merger with intellecash Microfinance

Network Company Private Limited; and
The Company has pbtained approval of members under section 180(1)(c) & {a) of the

Companies Act, 2013 by way of Special rResolution for giving authority to the Board of Directors
of the Company to borrow upto Rs.150 Crores and to create charge on all or any of the assels

of the Campany.

port is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure — A and forms

an integral part of this report.

Place: Bhayander
Date: 27.05.2015

For M Baldeva Associates
Company Secre taries

..;-—--&.--mv.:‘.m,

£ / €S Manish Baldeva
Proprietor
M. No.6180, CP No.11062




Continuation Sheet

M Baldeva Associates

Company Secretaries

Annexure &
Ty
The Members,
Jain Sons Finlease Limited
8-2-682/1, 4" Floor,
Road No.12, Banjara Hills,
Hyderabad-500034, Andhra Pradesh

My report of even date is 10 read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. | have followed the audit practices and processes as Were appropriate to ebtain reasanable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification
was done on test basis 1o ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. | believe
that the processes and practices, | followed provided a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Book of
Accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulation,
standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification
of procedures on the test basis,

6. The Secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as 1o the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

For M Baldeva Associates
Company Secretaries

e A
s

€S Manish Baldeva
Place: Bhayander : Proprietor
Date: 27.05.2015 M. No.6180, CP No.11062
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Jain 8oas Finlease Limited
Report on the Financial Statemenats
1. We have audited the accompanying finencial statements of Jain Sons Fialesse Limited (“the
Cempany™), which comprise the Balance Shect as ar 31 March 2015, the Statement of Profit and
Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and 2 summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Respansibility for the Financial Statements

I

The Company’s Board of Dircctors is responsible for the matters stted in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 213 (“the Act”} with respect to the preparation of these financial statemeats, that
give a true and fair view of tlie financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
‘Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Compaaies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and the guidelines issued by Rescrve Bank of India as applicable
to Non-Banking Financial Compaany. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Acy safeguarding the assets of the
Company; preventing and detectng frauds and other irregnlarities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates thet are ressonable pnd prudent; aand
design, implementation snd maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the nccounting records, relevant to
the preparation and prescatation of the financial staternents that give a truc and fair view and are
free from materinl misstatement, whether due to frand or error.

Auditor’s Responeibility

3. Our respounsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

4. We have taken inte account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
tnrtters.which are required to be included in the anditor’s report under the provisions of the Act

a n”ﬁ;t-h_c'. .f{}‘l les made chereunder.

i C.E:,\ /ﬁ\_—_
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10.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those standards require that we comply with erhical requirements and plan 4nd
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from matcrial misstarement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain andit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the andiror’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whetber
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the anditor considexs internal financial
controls relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give z true and fair
view in order to de’qign audit ploccdmes that are appropriate in the circumstances, but aot for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has i place an adequate interaal financial
controls system over fnancial reporning and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonablencss
of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Direciors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe thar the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide 2
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given 1o us,
the aforesaid financial statemrents give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Compaay as at 31 Macch 2015, irs profit and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Oxder, 2015 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government of Indiz in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure a smatement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 1433} of the Act, we report thag

a. we have sought and obtained all the infocnation and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

L. in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. the financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. 'in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accountng Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
(rs amended):

c. on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2015
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March 2015 from being appointed as & director inn tenins of Section 164(2} of the Act; and

Charterad Accounlants
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£ with respeet to the other matters to he included ia the auditor’s report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companiés {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in ont opinicn and 6 the best of our
information and according to the explanations given (o us:

& the Company does not have any peoding litigations which would impact its financial positian;

i the Company did not have any long-term contracts including dedvative conteacts for which
there were any material foresceable losses; and

il there wete no amounts whicl were required to be transferzed 1o the lnvestor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For Walker Chandiok & Cg EQI_%C&D Uf

Chartered Accountants
Finn’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

per Sanfay Kumar Jain
Paziner
Merabership No.: 207660

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 27 May 2015

Charterad Accountants
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Annexure to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date 1o the members of Jain Sons

Finlease Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended 31 Mazrch 2015

Based on the audit procedures performed for the puspose of reporting a true and fair view or the financial
statements of the Company and takin g into consideration the information and explanations given to us and
the books of account and other records esanviced by us ia the normail course of audit, we report that;

B (1) The Company has maintained propet records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation af fixed assets,

(b) The fixed assets have been physieally verified by the management during the year and no
material diserepancies were noticed on such verifieation. In our opinion, the frequency of
verification of the fixed assets is reasonable baving regard to the size of the Company and

the narure of irg as541Ls.

(is} The Company does not have Ay Inventory. Accordingly, the {rrovisions of clavse 3(i) of the

Order are not applicable.

{iil} The Company has not granted zay losn, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other
parties covered in the tegister maintained under Section 189 of the Acr. Accordingly, the

provisions of clauses 3(it)(a) and 3(ii)(b) of the Order are ot applicable.

{iv) Owing 1o the nature of jts business, the Company does not maintain any physical inventories or
sell any goods. Accordingly, clause 3iv) of the Order with fespect to purchase of inventories and
sale of goods is not applicable. In our opivion, there is an adequate internal conteol system
commensurate with the size of the Company and the natare of its business for the purchase of
fixed assets and for the sale of services. During the course of our audit, no major weakness has

been noticed in the inteenal contrel system in respeet of these areas.

*) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

(vi) To the best of ouy knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not specified
maiarenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of
services rendered by the Compaay. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Qrder

are not applicable.

(vit}(a} Un disputed statu tory dues includiag provident fund, employees® state Insuranee, in come-tax,
sales-tax, wealsh tax, setvice tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess fnd
other material statutory dues, s applieable, Lave ngt becn tegularly deposited with the
appropriate authotities and there have been significant delays in a large number of cases,
Undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof, which were ontstanding at the year-cad for
A period of more than six months from the date they became payable ace as follows:

Name  of | Nature of Amount | Period to which the | Due Date Date  of
the statute | the dues %) armount relates Payment
The Scif- U3,080,862 | Assessmont year 31 March 2014 | Mot yet
Income-tax | assessment 2014-15 paid

Act, 1961 tAx

(1) Thete are no dues in respect of income tax, sales-tax, wealth fax, service

tax; duty of

customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess that have not been deposited with the

appropriate authoritics on aceount of aoy dispure.

(¢} There were na amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company in accordance with the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 and rules made therepnder, :’.\ccordjngly, the provisions of clause

3(vti)(c) of the Order are sort applicable,

(viii) In our opinion, the Company has no accumulated losses at the end of the financial year agd

Chéria‘i_' 4 Aceountanty

it has not incurred cash losses in the current and the immediately preceding financial year.
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Annexure o the Independen

LP

t Auditor’s Repott of even date to the members of Jain Sons

Finlease Limited, on the financial staterments for the year ended 31 March 2015

() The Company has delayed in repayment of dues to debenture-holders during the year. Interest on
debentures amounting to 36,105,329 due for payment on 1 january 2015, was paid by the

Company on 2 Januvary
istiration {(which include

2015. The Compan}r has deIﬁ}-‘cd in repayment of dues to a financial
Scheduled Banks):

Name of the bani Amount (%) Due date Delay in days
Ratnakar Baak Limited 278,082 30-Sep-14 8
Ratnakar Bank Limited 1,094,673 31-Jan-13 3
Ratnakar Bank Limited 11,191,111 23-Mar-15 1

{x) The Company has sot

given any guarantees for loans raken by others from banks or

financial institutions. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(x) of the Order are not

applicable.

()  In our opinion, the Com
were obtained.

pany has applied the term loans for the purpase for which these loans

(xi)  No fraud on or by the Cowpany has been noticed or reported during the period covered by our

audtt,

Worel ¢k TR
“or Walker Chandiok & Co DLP

Chartercd Accountants

Hirm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

L4

per Sanjay Kumar Jain
Partner

Membership No.: 207660

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 27 May 2015

Chartered Accountants
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Auditor’'s Report

[Pursuant to the Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor's Report (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2008]

To

The Board of Dizectors
Jain Sons Finlease Limited
8-2-682/1, ¢th Floor
Road no 12, Banjara Hills
Hyderabad - 500034

1. We have audited the financial statements of Jain Sons Finlease Limited (the “Company”), which
comprise the Balance sheet as at 31 March 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, and a summaty of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information and have issued a unqualified opinion vide our report dated 27 May 2015.

Iy

As requived by the paragraphs 3 and 4 of Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report
(Reserve Bank) Dircctions, 2008 issued by the Reserve Bank of India {"the RBI") vide Notification
No. DNBS. 201/DG({VL)-2008 dated 18 September 2008 (amended from time to time) and based
on our audit, we report on the matters as specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said directions:

a. The Company is engaged in the business of Nen-Banking Financial Institution (without accepting
or holding public deposits) and pursuant to the provisions of Section 45(1A) of the Reserve Bank
of Tndia Act, 1934 it had obtained a certificate of registration from the RBL

b. In our opinion, and in terms of the Company’s asscts and income pattetn as at and for the year
ended 31 March 2015, the Company is endtled to continue to hold the certificate of registration
issued by the RBI

Chartered Accounitanis Viatker Cluetick & Co LLP bs repisteced willt Gvied hariiey
with ifentification number RAC-2085 ind its repistorad
Qkzes @ Eenpatiry, Crondigary, Chenaat, Rurgaon, Hyderabad, HoBata, Surelban, Wow Dall, Maida and Pune office at L4 Soanaught Crats, New Deit, FYCOOT, iz
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¢ The Company is not an asset finance company as defined under the Non-Banking Financial
Companies Acceptance of Pablic Deposits Reserve Bank) Ditections, 1998,

d. The Company is nor a Non-Banking Financial Company — Micro Finance Institution as defined
under the Non-Banking [Financial Company ~ Micro Financial Institutions (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2011,

¢. The board of directors of the Company in their meeting held on 16 April 2014 has passed a
resolution for non-ncceptance of any public deposits duting the financial veat 1 April 2014 1o
31 March 2015.

£ The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the year ended 31 March 2015,

& In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given to us,
the Company has complied with the prudential norms issued by the RBI in relation to recognition
of income, accounting standards, asset classification and provisioning for bad and doubtfal debts
as applicable to it in terms of the Noo-Systemically Important Non-Banking [Financial {Non-
Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015.

For Walker Chandiolk 8 CoLLP
Chartéred Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 0G1076N/N500013

per Sarfjay Kumar Jain
Pactner
Membership No.: 207660

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 27 May 2015

Chartared Accountants




Jatn Sons Finlease Limited
Balance Shect as at 31 March 2015
{All amounts in § unlass othemwisa stated)

MNotes 31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Equity and labilitics
Sharehelders' funds
Share capital 3 385,188,280 348,188,270
Reserves and surplus 4 86,643,274 48,176,837
474,831,554 436,365,107
Neou-current lahiljtics
Loag-term horeowings 5 702,530,605 51,992,766
Othet long-term liabilities G 4,300,000 -
Long-tenmn pravistons 7 6,260,684 1,939,280
713,094,289 53,932,046
Current liabilities
Short-term botrowings 8 50,000,000 121,937 412
Oiber current liabilities 6 407,745,197 76,870,157
Shact-term provisions 7 17,435,974 7,078,163
’ ' 475,185,171 205,886,332
Total 1,663,104,014 696,183,485
Assets
Non-current assels
Tanpible fixed asscts 9 7,106,182 1,500,247
Meon-cureent investments 10 69,918,623 -
Deferend tax asseta {net) 1t 5,182,302 1,473,846
Laan to custormers 12 414,322,922 186,671,841
Long-teom loans and advances 13 23,553,570 6,290,286
Other non-cureent assees 14 16,067,598 -
530,151,497 195,936,920
Cusrent asscts
Cutrent investments 1 45,759,000 122,737,935
Loan to customees 12 £32,601,800 290,439,700
(Cash arul bank balances 15 215,024,652 63,592,325
Short-term loans and advances 13 3,405,631 18,237,803
Other current assets 14 36,161434 5,238,804
1,132,552,517 500,246,565
Totat 1,663,104,014 694,183,485

The accornpanying notes 1 to 34 form sa intepeal past of these financial statements.
This is the Balance Shaet referred o in pur roport of even date,

Yoo WP

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and a behalf of the Baard of Ditecioos of
Jain Son% Finlease Limited

NV

Vineet Cifapdea Rai

reered Accown:

pet SanjoyRumar Jain

Pactner {Chairman Directos and Chief
DHMN: 0606290 Executive Cificer
3 DIN: 03409208
LD
Mitis Pra HE; esai
Chief Financial Offices Company Secrerary

Date: 27 May 2015 Lo . T Duates 27 May 2015
Place: [ydertad: R Place: Hyderabad



Jzin Sons Finlease Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2045

{All amounls in T unless olhenylse stated)

Notes 31 March 2815 31 March 2014
Revenues
Revenue from operations 16 209,478,149 79,989,070
Other income 17 1,213 196,627
Total revenues 209,479,362 80,185,097
Expenses
Employee benefits expense i8 30,428,320 22,802,743
Finance costs 1% 77,003,043 16,108,294
Depreciation 0 1,652,312 371,815
Provisions and write-offs 20 18,556,271 3779842
Other expenses 21 20,617,693 15,932,613
Total expenses 148,347,639 58,995,307
Profit beforce tax 61,131,723 21,190,390
Tax expense
Curent mx 23,292,922 10,377,546
Deferred tax benefit (3,708,456) {1,082,110)
Taxes of eatlier years 3,080,862 407,337
Profit for the year 38,466,395 11,487 417
Enznings per cquity share (EPES) 23
Basic 3.56 1.21
Diluced 2.38 1.07
Nominal value per equity share 10 10

The accompanying notes § to 34 form an integral part of these financial STLements.

This Is the Statement of Profir and Loss referred to in our repart of even date.

LS MMOJW::@
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Dare: 27 May 2015
Place: Hyderabad

ue

For and on §thalf of the Board of Directors of

Jain Sons Finlease Limited

Vineet Chanlira Rai
Chairman
DIN: 00606290

Nitin Prgkash Agrawal
Chief Financial Qfficer

Diare: 27 May 2015
Place: Hyderabad

\QL{, /\J Lv

Sanjib Kiimar [ha
Directorfand Chief
Execunve Qfficer
DIN: 03409208

G
AT
‘:«’f'fg”'f ‘
'Clumg Desai
Company Secretary




Jain Bons Finlease Limifed

Cash Flow Statement for tha year ended 31 March 2015

(Al amounts in T unless otherwise slated}

31 March 2015 31 -March 2014
Cash Now from opcrating activities
Profit before 1ax 61,131,723 21,190,390
Adjustiments los
Depreciagon 1,852,312 371,915
Prowtsions and writc-offs 48,556,271 3,779,842
Gratuity 437,443 56,483
Gain on sale of investmoents (4,115,051} -
Dieidend income (1,995,980} -
Cmployee stock compensation expenst - 5,632,044
Operating profit before working eapital changes 75,666,718 31,030,574
Drerease/ {invrease) in loans and ndvances 4,354,017 {25,001,386)
lnerease in loans to customers (776,739,530) {377,984,220)
Increase in othor current agsets {40,950,528) (2,542,225
{(Decreasc)/ inciease in other liabilities (54,595,981) 890,323
Cash used in aperations (822,305,304) {374,006,943)
Incouye tax paid, ner {30,547,664) {9,828,556)
Net eash uged in opeating sctivities {A) (352,852,068) (383,535,499
Cash flow from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of units of mumeal fund 1,146,548,964 336,169,921
Purchase of units of mutual fund (1,018,400,600) (429,500,138)
Invustmont in pass througl cemificates {115,677,623) -
Purchase of fixed assers (7,257,547 {1,570,210)
Investiment in Oxed deposits 2,184,990} (29,576,097
Met cash from/ (used in) investing activities (B} 3,728,804 (124,576,524)
Cash flow from financing activities
Procends from ssue of shares 52 319,999.973
Shiace Issue expenses - (11,002,189)
Peaceeds from bocrowings 1,167,151,384. 379,500,016
Repavatent of borrowings (168,775,935) (64,080,398}
Net cash from {inaoscing activilies {Q) 998,371,501 524,417,402
Net ineresse in cash and cash equivalenis {(A+B+C) 149,247,337 15,705,379
Cash and cash equivalents ar the beginning of die year 34,006,225 18,300,849
Cash and cash cquivalents a1 the end of the yeac 183,253,565 34,006,228
Nare 1t Interest paid 61,883,343 12,080,660
Nate 20 Interest reecived on loans 122,784,954 40,114,623

This is the Cash Flow Stntcrgmt cferred ta in vur report of even date.

Lballte- é\

For Walker Chandiok & Co

e ~
per Sanpp-Kumar Jain

Partner

Date: 27 May 205
PMace: Flydesabad

Foe md an | / Inlfnf the Board of Directors of

Jaia Smxs lease Limited
Vinget Cha /Bg

Chaimtan
DIN: 00566200

)
Mitin Prn sh Agrrwal

Chicf l‘lm!{c‘ln.i Officer

Dater 27 May 2015
Place: Hydeabad

Sanjib Kn

Director antl Chief
Executve QOfficer
DIN: 03 409208

Lo

irag Desai
Compnay Sceretary




Jain Sens Finlease Limited
Summary of significant accounting poalicies and other explanatory information
{All amounts in T unless otherwise staled)

1.

I~

Comnpany overview

Jain Sons Finlease Limited (“the Cowmpany™) is a limited liability company incogporated under the
provistons of the erstwhile Comprnies Act, 1956, Effective 7 January 1999, the Company is repistered 23 u
non-deposit raking, Non-Banking Financial Company (“NBFC”} under the rules and regulations framed by
the Reserve Bank of India (“the RBI"). Effcctive 23 December 2011, the Company is a subsidiaey of
Intellecctual Capiral Advisory Services Private Limited (“ICAP") and is engaged in the business of lendin g o
Small and Medium Enterprises (“SMI,

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial stitement has beea prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified purguant ko
the Companies (Accounting Standacds) Rules, 2006 {as amended) ({the “Rules™j which are deemed to be
applicable s per Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 7 of the Companics
{Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and other recognized accounting practices and policies peneeally
accepted in India including the requirements of the Act (“Endian GAAP?) and guidelines issued by the RBI
as applicable to non-banking financial companies. The financial statements have been prepared on an
acerual basis excepr for interest on non-performing loan assets which have been accounted on cash basis
based on RBI rules. The sccounting policies applied by the Company ate consistent with those used in the
previous year.

All nssets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal
operating cycle and other criteria ser our in the Schedule 111 to the Act. Based on the nature of work, the
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as up to rwelve manths for the purpose of current and nono-
current classification of assets and liabilitics.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indizo GAAP requices management to make
estimates and assumptions thar affect the balances of sssets and liabiliies and disclosures relating 1o
contingent liabilides as at the reporting date of the financial statements and amounts of income and
expenses. Examples of such esimates include the provision for doubtful advances, cmployee benefits,
income taxes, recognition of deferred tax assets, dimioution in the value of long-term investments,
classification of assets and liabilities into cucrent and nos-cuzrent and useful ife of fixed assets.

Although these estimates are based vpot management’s best knowledge of curtent events and actions,
actzal results could matrally differ Fom those estmates. Any revision to accounting estimares is
tecognized prospectively in the current and future periods.

Tangible fixed assets

Fixed assets are carried at the cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, il
any. The cost comprises the pucchase price, keight, non-refundable taxes and duties, and any direetly
attetbutable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Asscrs retired from
active use and held for disposal are stated ar their estmated ner tealisabile vaives or net book wvalues,
whichever is lower.
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d. Depreciation

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided using the staight-line method based on uscfil lives of the assets.
Usntil 31 March 2014, the assets were depreciated using the written down value method based on the useful
lives estirmared by the management, or those prescribed under the Schedule XIV to the Companics Act
1956, whichever 1s lower. During the year, pursvant to the provisions of the Act, applicable from 1 April
2014, management has revised the estimates of useful lives of its fixed assets to useful lives prescribed
under the Schedule [T to the Act

a. lImpairment

The carrying amounts of asscts are reviewed at each balance sheet date if thare is any indication of
impaizment based on internal/external factors. An impaitment loss s recognized wherever the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the preater of the assct’s net
selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated Fature cash flows are discounted to
their present value at the weighted average cost of capizal.

Afrer impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining
usefut life.

f. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the coonomic benefits will flow to the Company
and the collectability is reasonably assured.

¢ Interest on loans is recognised on accrual basis, except in the case of non-performing assets, where
interest is recognised upon realisation, in accordance with the directives of Non-Systemically Iraportant
Mon-Banking Financial (Nen-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2015 (“Prudential Nosms™). Additional interest for delays in payments is recognized
as income oaly when it is cermin thar the amounts will be collected from the customers,

® Loan processing fecs is accounted for-up-frontwhen it becomes due.

e Profit/loss on the sale of investments is computed on the basis of weighted average cost of
invesrments and recognized at the tdme of acrual sale/redemption.

o Dividend is recognized when the right to receive the payment is cstablished.

© Intesest income is tecagnized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding
and the rate applicable.

¢ Discount received in respect of bills discounted is appordoned over the period of usance of the
lAstruarnents.

o Income from sceurdtisation js recoguized based on the coupon rate as per the terms of the respective
CONrACTS.
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d.

Asset classification and provisioning

Loans are classified as follows:

Particuluse Criteria

Standard assets Overdue < 60 days

Non-performing nssets

- Sub-standard assets Overdue for 60 days or more 1 730 days

- Doubtful assers Orverdue > 730 days

- Loss assets As wdeatified by the Company/external
auditors /RBI

Note: Overdue refers to interest and/or instalment remaining unpaid from the day it becarme receivable.

Provision fot loan partfolio

Asset classification No. of days past due ' Provision

Standard assets

- 1%

0-30 1%

31 =60 2.5%

Sub.standard assets

61 —90 10%

01— 180 33%

181 —~360 50%

361 - 730 100 %

Provision on restructured accounts classified as standard advances is made at 5% whereas provisiening on
restructured aecounts classified as sub-standard advances is made ar 10%.

Investments

Investments thac are ceadily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a sear arc classified as
current investments. Al other investments are classified as long-term investments. Refer note 2(3) for policy
on investments in pass through certificates of special purpose vehicles formed for securitisation of assets.

Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment
basis. Long-tetm investments are carded at cost. However, provision for dimiution in value j5 made to
tecopnise a decline other than temporary in the value of the long-term investments.

Securitisation

The Company purchases credit rated asset pools from banks / non-banking finance companics by way of
pass through certificates issued by the special purpose vehicle. Such securitisation transactons are
accounted as investments as per Accounting Standard 13 ‘Accountng for Tnvestments' in accordance with
the ‘Guidance Note on Accounting for Securitisation’ issued by the ICAL

Employee benefits

Gratiity

Gratuity is 2 posi-employment defined beaefiv obligation. The liability recopnized in the Balance Sheet
represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the Balance Shect date, rogether with
adjustments for past service costs. An independent actuary, using the projected unit credit method
caleulates the defined benefit obligation annually, Actunrial guns or losses avsing from experience
adjustments and changes in actaarial assumptions are credited or charged te the Statement of profit and
loss in the year in which such gains or losses arises.
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k.

Foreign currency fransactions and translation

Initial recognition

Foreign currency tansactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction. '

Conuersion

Foreign currency monetaty ifems age reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are cacried
in terms of historical cost denominated in 2 foreign currency are reported using the exchange eate at the
date of the transaction; and non-monetary iterns which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation
denorninated in a foreign currency are ceported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were

determined.

Excchange differsuces

Exchange differcnces arising on the settlement of monetary items or on the reporting of monetary ttems at
rates differcnt (rom those at which they were initially cecorded during the year, or reported in previous
financial staternents, are recogaized s income or as expense in the year in which they arise.

TSLXCS
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax.

Cursent tax
Current tax is mensured st the amount expected to be paid to the wx authodtics in accordance with the

Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in Indin.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax chasges or credits reflect the tax effect of tming differences between accounting income and
txable income for the period, The defetred tax charges or credits and the corresponding defered tax
linbilitics or assets are recognized using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date, Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is reasonable cestainty that
the assets can he realized in the future pedods; however, where there is unabsorbed deprediation or carried
forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax nssets are recognized only if there is a virtaal certainty of
realization of such assers. Defecred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet dae and written dovwn or
written-up to reflect the amount that is reasonably/virtually certain (as the case may be) to be realized.

Employee share based paymeats

Measurernent and disclosure of the employee share-based pagment plans is done in accordance with the
guidance note on “Accounting for Employre Share-based Paymenis”, issued by the ICAL The excess of
inteinsic walue of the stock on the date of grant over the exercise price of the option Is recopnized ‘ax
expense in the statement of profit and loss on straight-line method aver the vesting period. The
accumulated amortized poction of cost is shown under employee share based payment outstanding 2ecount.

Leascs
Where the lessor effectively retains all risk and benefits of ownership of the leased ftems, such leases are

classified as operating lease. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of
profit and loss on « straight line basis,
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a.

Cash and cash equivalents

Casl and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprise of cash at bank and on hand and include
short term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Grants

Grants from chadtable organizations are recognized ar their Fair value where there is a reasonable assuzance
that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached condidons. Grangs are
recopgnized as income over the periods necessary to match them with the costs for which they are intended
Lo compensate, on 3 systematic basis. Other grants with no further costs are recognized in the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Earnings per equity share

Basic earnings per equity share are caleulated by dividing the nec profit (loss) for the year attriburable to
cquity sharcholders by the weighted avernge number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For the
purpose of calculating diluted carnings per equity share, the net profit or loss for the year attribumble to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shates outstanding during the year ace adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions and contingent linbilities

Provision is recognized when the Company has 4 present obligation as a tesult of a past event and when it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to setde the obligation, in respect of which a
reliable estimare can be made. Provisions are not discounted o their present value and are determined
based on management’s best estimate required to settle the obligation ar the balance sheer date. These are
reviewed st each balance sheet dare and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates. A disclosure
of » contingent liability is made when there is a possible or a preseat obligation that may, but probably will
not, require un outflow of respurces.

(The betow spuce bas been intentionally fift blank}
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3. Share capital

31 March 2015 31 Mazch 2014
Numbes Amount MNumber Amount

Authorized
Bauity shaces of T10 each 17,500,000 175,000,000 17,500,000 175,000,000
0.001% Compulsory Convertible Prefecence Shares 2,000,000 40,000,000 2 000,000 10,000,000
("CCPS™) of ¥20 cach
0.001% Sesies B1 Computsory Converiible 2,500,000 250,000,000 2,500,000 250,000,000
Prefesence Shares ("CUPS™) of X100 zach E e . B
0.001% Sedes 32 Compulsory © tibl

erits B Lompusory Lonyerne 100,000. 30,000,000 300,000 30,000,000

Prefecence Shares ("CCPS™ of T100 each
495,000,000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

Eequity shares of 10 each 16,819,348 108,193,450
D.001% Sedex B CCPS of T100 ench 2,498,948 249,994,800
0.001% Sedes B2 SIS of T100 each 300,000 30,600,000

388,188,280

g2) Reconcilintion of equity share capital

495,000,000
T,

10,819,347 108,193,470
2,494,948 249,994,800
300,000 30,008,000

e e e

388,188,270
b —— e

31 Masrch 2815 31 March 2014
Numnber Amdunt Nunber Amount
Balance at the beginning of the year 10,819,347 168,193,470 9,289,725 92,897,230
Add: Allored during the year i 1 9% 990
Add: Allomient of shares pursunor to BSOP " - 560,000 5,400,000
Add: Allounent an conversion of CCPS into oquicy - - 969,525 9,695,250
Balance at the end of the year 10,819,348 108,193,480 10,819,347 108,193,470

bj Terms and rights attached to equity shares

‘Mie Company has only one class o equity shares having 2 par value of $10 pur shace. Each holder of equity shaces is entitled 0
one vate per shace. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Boned of

Directars, if any, is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing genenl meedng,

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assers of the

Company in proportion of their sharcholding,

¢} Reconciliation of CCPS

1 March 2015 31 Maech 2014
Mumber Amount MNurnber Amaount

0.001% CCPS of £20 each

Balance st the beginning of the year - - - -
Al Allotted during the yeac - - 2,000,000 44,000,000
Leas: Converted into equity share capical - - (2,000,000} {40,000,000)
Nalance at the end of the year - - - -
0.001% Series Bl CCDPS of 100 cach

Balrnce at the bepinning of the year 2,499,948 249,994,500 - -
Adid Altoned dering the year - - 2,490.948 249,904 800
Bakaner at the end af the vear 2,499,948 249,994,500 2,499 943 249,994,800
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31 Mazch 2015 3] Marcly 2014
Noember Amount Mumber Amount
0.801%: Series B2 CCPS of 10§ cach
Balance ar che beginuing of the yeor 300,000 30,000,006 . .
Add: Alleted during the year - - 300,000 30,000,000
Balanee at the end of the year 300,004 30,000,060 300,000 30,000,000

&) Terms and sights suached to CCPS of 220 each
The Company had allotied non-curmulative 2,000,000 CCPS of face value T20 each fully paid-up at par o Michael & Susan Dt
Foundation which were later converted into 969,525 equity shares of 10 cach fully paid-up 4t n premivm of 31,26 each share.
CCPS cacry dividend of 0.001% per onaum. Bach CCPS holder shall be entitled 1o participate along with the equity share
halders in any dividends declared by the Company on the equity shares, a5 if such CEPS have been converted to equity shares.

¢} Terms and rights wttached ta CCPS of TI00 cach
The Company had allored non-cumulative 2,499,948 CCPS and 300,000 CCPS of face value 100 each filly puid-up at par to
ON Mauritius and Michael & Susan Dell Foundaton (MSDF) respectively. CCPS carry dividend of 0.061% per annum. In
addition to the fixed dividend, each CCPS shall bie entided to participate along with the equity shaces in any dividends declared
by the Company on the equity shages, as if such CCPS has been converred into equity shares immediately prior to declation of
dividend by the Company.

Pursumnt to the terms of Sharcholders Agreement dated 18 Februney 2014 berwesn the Company, [CAD, ON Mauritius, MSTF
("the investors") and CEQ, CCPS shall be compulsodly converible into equity share of £10 each fully paid-up at a premivm of
2.12.25 cach share. The CCPS shall be manilatordly convertble into equity shares at any time hefore 22 Macch 2019 ar che ophon
of the CCPS holder, In the event of liquidstion of the Company, beforc conversion of CCIS, the holders of CCT'S will have
priedty over equity shares in tic payment of dividend and repayment of capital. Bach CCPS holdee shiall be enritled 1w
participate along with the equity share holders in any dividends declared by the Company on the equity shares, as il such CEPS
Liave been converted to vouity shares.

f} Details of equity shares held by holding company and its subsidiaries

H March 2015 31 Marely 2014
Number Amount Number Amount
ICAP 5,098,995 59,995 950 5,999,995 59,999,950
IntelleCash Microfinance Network Company
Private Limited, a subsidiary o the holding
company {"IntelleCash”) 1,000,000 16,000,080 1,000,000 10,000,000

#) Shuccholders holding mozc than five peecent of paid-up equity share capital

31 Marech 2015 31 Murch 3014
[ H . o, erer
Number Yo olding in Number Ve im.lclmb n

the class they elags
ICAP 5,999,095 55.46% 5,999,095 55.40%
Michael & Susan Dell Foundation 2,091,247 24.87%% 2,601,347 24BTh
histelleCash 1,000,000 0.24% 1,000,000 9.24%
Samjib Kusaar tha 310,001 7.49% 810,001 74P
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hy Shaccholders holding mare than fve percent of paid-up §.001% Serics BI CCPS of T100 each fully paid-up

31 March 208 A1 March 2014
% holding in . % holding in
Nurabes the class Nurnbee the class
{0 MMaaritduy 2,499,948 160.00% 2,499,948 100L0D%

Stharchelders holding moee than five peccent of paid-up 0.001% Series B2 CCPS of 7100 each fully paid-up

31 Muuch 2015 31 Mareh 2004
. Lo o L
Numbes Yo Liolding in Number % bolding in
the class. the class
AMichael & Susan Dell Foundation 300,000 100.50% 300,000 100.850%

Shares issued for a consideration other than in cash

The issued, subserbed and fully paid-up share capitl as at 31 March 2013 includes 560,000 (31 March 2614: 560,000} equity
shages nf 218 each fully prid-up, altuteed pursuant to contact for consideration other than cash during the perad of five years
immadiately preceding the reporing dace.

k) Shiares reseeved for fssue under options

Enployee share based payment
At tts mevting held on 10 December 2012, the Board of Dircetors (“the Boacd”) had reserved 840,889 equity shares of T10 each
for allotment 1o employecs of the Company under a shace based employec compensation plan.

O these, the Boacd has identified 560,000 equity shares for allorment to Mr Sanjib Kumar Jha, Chief Exceutive Officer
("CEO") of the Company for no cousideration. These shares have been vested and allstted by the Board in its reeting held on
17 December 2013,

‘The balrnce 280,889 cquity shares shall be allotted to cligible employees of the Company based on recommendtion of CEO
and approval of the Board.

The Company has considered 12.63 as inedusic value of each equity share for the purpose of recosding share based employee
COMPLASAtIOn.

In the opision of te management, the cost of share based payments under faie value method is not expected to be significandy
diffecent from the cost determined under intdnsie value muthod and also as the cost of share based payment does not form a
significant pact of the total cost, the peo forma disclosures segarding impact of fair value method on the reported net profit and
carnings per exquity share is not constdered accrssary.

(This space is intentianally lff blanie}
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4.

Reserves and surplus

Securities premium account
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Premivim on issue of shares
Add: Prembun sn ESCPs exercised
Less: Share issue expenses

Balance at the ead of the year

Employes stock options outstanding account
Balance at the beginning of the year

Less: Shazes issued during the year

Balance at the end of the year

Statutory reserve fund

Balanee at the beginning of the yeas

Add: Transfer from statement of profit and loss
Balance at the end of the year

Surplus in the statement of ‘profit and loss

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Profit for the year

Less: Transferred to statutory reserve fund
Balasice at the end of the yeat

31 March 2015

31 March 2014

31,130,324 10,356,780
42 30,308,933

- 1,472,800

- (11,002,189)
31,130,366 31,130,324
. 1,440,756

- (1,410,756)
3,747,964 1,450,481
7,693,279 2,297 483
11,441,243 3747964
13,298,549 4,108,615
38,466,395 11,487,417
(7,693,279) (2,297,483)
44,071,665 13,298,549
86,643,274 48.176837

In accordance with the provisten of Section 45 IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 the Company being an
NBFC is required to teansfer at least 20% of net profit after tax for the year to a statutory reserve fund.

Long-term borrewings
{Secured)

Debentutes

1,942 {31 March 2014: NiI) Non-Convertible Redeemable Debeatures
{NCDs) of $100,000 each fully paid-np

2,400 (31 March 2014: Nil) Non-Convertible Redesmable Debentures
(NCDs) of T100,000 each fully paid-up

Term and other loans
- from banks

- from other pasties

Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings (Refer note 6)

3% March 2015

31 Magch 2014

194,200,600

240,000,000

135,372,737
511,239,449

37,002,842
56,389,364

1,080,812,186
378,281,581

93,482,206
41 489 440

12,530,665

51,992,766
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Debentuses

The Company has allotted 1,942 NCDs of face value of T100,000 each fully paid-up at discount of X1,000 per
debenture on 8 October 2014, NCDs are secared by way of hypothecation of book debts/loan receivables and
cardes interest rate of 13.9% per annw, act of withholding taxes (31 March 2014: Nil) payable half yearly.
Interest rate shall be tesct after a perind of three years from she date of alloment. The NCDs are redeemable at
pat on 8 QOctober 2020, The Company has call option and the debenture holders have put option on NCDs
exercisable at the end of 36 months from the date of issue.

The Corapany has allotted 2,400 NCDs of face value of 100,000 each fully paid-up at par on 23 March 2015.
NCDs are sceured by way of hypothecation of book debts/ican receivables and carries intetest rate of 13.25%
pet anmun (31 March 2074: Nil) payable half yeacly. The NCDs ate first sedeemable at par on 23 Mazch 2018,
The redemption date, at the option of the debenture holders, may be extended first to 23 March 2019 and then to
23 NMarch 2020

Term and other loans

The loan from banks cardes interest linked to the bank's peme lending rate and ranges from 13% per annum to

14.5% per annum (31 March 2014: 13.25% per annum). The interest on loans from others ranges from 14.5% 1o

16% per aonum (31 March 2014: 15% to 16% per annum). Loans are secared as follows:

- L.ouns amounting to 646,612,186 (31 March 2014 ?93_,482,206) is secured by way of hypothecation of bock
debyts created out of the loan amount:

- Laans from others amounting to 320,011,992 (31 March 2014: T56,389,364) is also secured by way of cash
deposits with respective lenders,

- Loan from baoks amounting to 57,594,959 (31 March 2014: 337,092,842} is also secured by way of equitable

mortgage on immovable propecty of ICAP and corporate guamantee of ICAP.

Repayment schedule

31 March 2015 31 Mazrch 2014
Up to 1 year 378,281,581 41,489,440
2to 5 years 702,530,605 51,992,766
Above b years - -

1,080,812,186 93,482,206

Other liabilities

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Non-current
{Zash collateral from customers 4,300,000 -
Current
Current marurities of long-tert borrowings 378,281,581 41,489,440
Interest accrued but not dae 11,395,400 2,675,920
Starutory liabikities 2,874,841 4,484,559
Other liabifities 8,150,360 4,629,000
Duies to holding company 192,680 6,555,856
Uneamed income - 17,035,382
Other liabilities 6,850,335 -

407,745,197 76,870,157
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7. Provisions

31 Maxch 2015 31 March 2014

Long-term
For gratuity {refer note {b) below] 508,678 72,562
Contingent provision against standard assets 4,490,916 1,866,718

Provision

- On sub-standard assets 561,964 -
- On investments $99,186 -
6,260,684 1,039,280

Short-term
For gratuity [refer note (b) below] 1,313 486
Conungent provision against standard assets 7,627,613 2,904,397

Provision

- On sub-standard assets 2,563,829 -
- On investments 457,590 -
Provision for tax (net of advance tax) 6,785,129 4,173,880
17,435,974 7,078,763

(a) Provisions
Balance ar the beginning of the year 4,771,115 991,273
Add: Charged during the year 14,703,682 4,364,630
Less: Reversed during the yeax (3,073,759} {584,788)
Balance at the end of the year 16,401,038 4,771,113

() The following table set out the status of the gramity plan as required under AS - 15 - Employee Beaefits and the

recenciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value and defined beaefit obligatioa.

Expense recognised in the statement of profit and Joss

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Current service cost 284,205, 59,882
Ioterest cast on benefit obligation . 5,805 1,408
Net actuarial {gaig) / loss 147,433 (4,807)
Net expense 437,443 56,433

Actual retun on plan assets

Changes in present value of the defined bencfit obligation for gratuiey

31 March 2015

31 March 2014

Opening defined benefit obligation
Interest cost

Current service cost

Actusial (gains)/ losses on obligations

Closing defined benefit obligation

73,048 16,565
5,805 1,408
284,205 59,882
147,433 (4,807)
510,491 73,048
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The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations far the Company's plans are shown
below:

31 March 2015 31 Mazch 2014
Discounting rate {per annumyj 8.60% 9.19%
Increase in compensation cost 5.60% 5.00%
Attddon rice 2.060% 2.00%
Retitement age (years) 60 58

The cstimates of future Sﬂ]ﬂﬂ' INCreases COI}SidCIEC] n actuaral valuation, fﬁk{‘. account OF iﬂﬂadon SEﬂiOril My
- r
pmmotion and other rcl:want [actors.

Shori-term borrowings

31 March 2015 31 March 2014

Loan from others (secured) 50,000,000 116,937,412
Lean from related party (unsecured) - 5,000,000
50,000,000 121,937,412

Loan from others amounting to 50,000,000 (31 March 2014; T116,937,412) is secured by way of hypothecation
of book debts created out of the loan amount and cash deposits with the respective Jenders. The loan carries
interest linked to the lender lending rate, and ranges from 14% to 16% per anpum (31 Mazch 2014: 15% 10 16%
per ansum}. The foan is repayable in twelve equated monthly installments.

() Unsecured loan taken from related party cacties an interest rate of 15% per annun.,

(This sprce ir infentionally kft blark)




Jaln Sons Finlease Limltad

Summary of stanificant accounting pollcies and uther explanatory information
(Al amounts in € unipss otherwisa staled)

9. Tangible fixed assets

Gross block

As at 1 April 2013
Additons

A5 at 31 March 2014
Additons

As at 31 Macch 2015

Depreciation

Up to 1 April 2613
Churge for the year
Up to 31 March 2014
Charpe for the year
Up to 31 March 2015

Net block
As at 31 March 2015
As at 31 Alarch 2014

Ofice

Furniture

Comgputers , Softwarc Total
equipment and fixtures
383,546 50,998 - - 434,544
T64,325 805,885 - - 1,570,210
1,147,871 856,383 - - 2,004,754
1,076,179 143,290 2,038,078 4,000,000 7,251,547
2,224,050 1,000,173 2,038,078 4,000,060 9,262,301
125,616 6,376 - - 131,992
311,077 60,738 - 371,815
436,693 67,114 - - 503,807
755,372 376,735 21,892 498,313 1,652,312
1,192,065 443,849 21,392 498,313 2,156,119
1,031,985 556,324 2,016,186 3,501,687 7,106,182
711,178 789,769 - - 1,500,947

{(Tdir space is intentionally ioft blonk)




Jatn Sons Fintease Limitod
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory informatlon
{All amounts In % unlgss clhervise slated)

10,

fnvestmonts
{Unquoted, not-tode)

MNen-current

Investment in Pass Through Certificates {FTCs)

45,949,772 units (31 Mareh 2014: Nil) of Series A2 PTCs of Satn - Hurcka Trast Macch
2015 I of face vahuw of T1 each,

90 units (31 Macch 2014: NI} of Series A2 II'Cs of Arkaios Muld Micro Finance Pool Trust
2015 of taee value of $266,320.57 ¢ach.

Current
M (31 March 2614: 121,326.11) units of Kotak Floater Short Teem - Daily dividend

Investment in PTCs
45,759 umits (31 March 2014: Mil) of Series A2 PTCs of Cedar MF? Trust 20 of face value af
Z1,000 each.

Agyrrepgaie amannt off

Unguoted investimenis

. Deferred tax assets [net)

Deferred tax linbility on aecount of
Hived assers

Deferred tax assets on account of
Provision for loan
(uhers

Duferred tax assets, net

(Thit space bas been Infentionally foft Mank)

3% March 2015 31 Macch 2014
45,949,772 -
23,968,851
64,518,623 .

- 123,737,933

45,759,003 .
45,759,000 122,737,033
115,677,623 122,731,933
3% March 2015 31 March 2014
304,055 07,842
5,321,317 1,547,058
165,048 23,700
5,182,302 1,473,846




Jain Sons Finloase Limited

Summary of significant accounting pelicies and other exptanatery infarmation

{All amounis in € unfess othervise stated)

12,

13,

Loan to customers
{Considered pood)

Standard agsets
Segured
Unsecured

Sub-standard assees
Secured
Unseeured

Represents assuts classificd in accosdance with the RB! Prudendal Neoms.

3 Miirch 2013 31 March 2014
Mon-current Cunrent MNau-curgent Current

307,201,642 553,799,858 151,029,969 199,191,410
95,883,210 240,733,440 35,641,872 91,748,290
4{43,084 852 794,533,298 180,671,841 290,439,700
13,238,070 16,276,583 - -

- 21,791,910 .

1,238,070 38,068,502 -
414,322,922 832,601 800 186,671 841 290,439,700

Loar te castomers include dues from following companies, in which Dircctors of the Company is 2 Dircetos

Waatsalya Healtheace Soludons Povate Limited
Visage Helding & Finance Peivate Limited
ULink Bio Enewgy Private Limited

Electronie Paynient and Services Private Limited
Milk Mavtea Daicy Private Limited

Loans and advances
{Unsecured, considered good)

Long-term
Coliareral seeurity given to lenders
Dreposits

Shortvtenn
Collateral secunty given to lenders

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Closing Maximum Closing Mutmam
bafance outstanding balanee outstanding
32,025,497 38,384,865 -
32,858,866 35,178,043 - -
11,790,983 18,531,675 -
96,875,000 106,008,600 18,464,708 30,232,400
- 25,000,000 15,000,000 15,000,004

Advances reeoverable i cash or in kind or for valte o be received®

CENYAT ceedit reecivable
Peepard expenses

*includes 868,584 {31 Macch 2014: 2,846,835 and 120,427 {31 March 2014

Nitin Peakash Ageawal, Chicf Financial Officer respeatively.

3% March 20315

3t Mareh 2074

21,439,070 5,890,286
2,114,500 400,000
23,553,570 6,200,386
- 14,450,000
2,516,457 3,564,123
740,350 165,979
148,644 57,701
3,405,651 18,237,503

< TNl due from Me, Saniils Kumar Jiw, Diteetor and br




Jaln Sens Fintease Limited
Summary of signliizant accounting policies and other cxplanatory infarmation
{Al amounls in T unloss alberwlse staled)

t4. Other assets
{Unsecnred, eonsidesed good)

Nan-current
Unamortsed exponses

Current

Accrued income

Laterest secrivable on foans
Unamoreised expenses
Oiher recoivaliles

15, Cash and bank balances

Cosh wnd ensh equivalents
Cazh on hand
Balanees with banks In current accounts

Othier bank balanees
IFixed deposits with bank (with mangpty of less than 12 months}*

¢ includes £26,896,087 (31 March 2014: 19,575,000) held as collaeral agminst the boerowings.

16, Revanue from operations

Iuterest income (rom
Loan to cuskomens
{fied deposits
Twvestment i PTCs

‘Other (inancial services
Loan processing fens

Gain on sale of invesiments
Dividend income

Integest on cash collaterals

Otlier operating incame
Grantincome

17, Gther Ihcome

Miscellaneous mepme

31 March 2005 31 Morch 2014

18,067,895 .
24,513,395 554,999
2,521,004 2,715,614
8,641,306 1,968,191
485,729 -
36,161,434 5,238,804

31 March 2615 31 Aacch 2014

433,445 2,760
182,820,120 33,906,463
183,253,565 34,006,228
31,771,087 29,586,047
215,024,652 61,502,325
31 March 2045 31 March 2014
144,147 423 42,530,616
1,904,042 690,518
1,511,802 -
17,460,997 5,872,500
4,115,051 1,478,241
1,595,980 6051
497,204 509,189
37,845,580 28,147,955
209,478,149 79,989,070
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
1,213 196,627




Jaln Sens Finlease Limited
Semmary of significant accounting pollcles and other exptanatary Infermation
{All amounts 1n ¥ unless olherwize slaled)

18. Employee bensiits expense

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Sabares and wages 28,986,600 15,357,094
Limployec share based payment " 5,432,044
Gratuity 457,443 56,483
Sraff welfase expenses 1,604,277 1,757,122
30,428,320 22,802,743
12, Finange gosis
3% barch 2015 31 March 2014
Interest expense 70,602,823 13,198,794
Other borcowing costs £,490,220 1,009,498
77,093,043 16,108,294
20, Provisions and write-offs
1 Marel: 2015 31 larch 2014
Contingent provision against standard ossets 7,347,414 3,779,812
Frovision {or sub-standard and ron-performing assets 3,125,733
Prevtsion on myestments 1,156,776 -
Porifolio loans watten-aff 6,926,348 -
18,556,271 3,779,842
21. Othar oxpenscs
31 Maech 2055 31 Mucch 2014
Rem 3,149,706 1,866,140
Offfice expenses 4,112,973 1,798,514
Legal and professional fees 2,209,648 3.364,018
Rates and tiaxes 2,046,806 3,842,121
Communication expeoses 491,765 302,188
Travelling and conveyance 6,246,299 3,230,369
Panting and stationery - 159,688
Advances written-off - (5,933
Dicectors sitting fees 40,03 20,000
Payments to the auditar
- Ag auditors 760,060 625,000
- s gthers 131,009 45,000
Miscellneons expenses 285,496 333,682
20,617,693 15,932,613

(Thir space bay been intentionatly fft blandy)




Jain Sons Finlease Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
{All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

22. Related party disclosures

a) Name of the related parcties and zelationship

Name of the parties Nature of relationship
ICAT _ Holding company
IntelleCash Fellow subsidiary

Intellecap Software Technologies Private Limited (“ISTPLT) Fellow subsidiany

Entity having sigaificant influence
T 5 over the Company

Sanjib Kumat |ha ¥ey management personnel (KMP)

Michael & Susan Dell Foundation

b Transactlons dusiag the year

31 Masch 2015 31 March 2014
ICAP
Support charges 1,713,463 1,860,312
Advisory scrvices fees 4,494,400 7:471,940
Reimbursement of expenses incuered on behalf of the
Campany 514,610 1,005,194
IntelieCash
Reimbursable cxpenses incurred on behalf of the ) 5768
Company ’
Loan taken - 5,000,000
Interest expense 439,726 499,317
Intellecap Software Technologies Private Limited
Rent 722,429 1,392,463
Sanjib Kumar Jha
Remuneration and other employce benefits 5,581,089 4,403,115
Employee stock option - 7,072,800
Reimbussable expenses incurred by the Company 833,845 2,998,695
Michael & Susan Dell Foundation
Investment in shace capital - 70,000,000

Note: ICAP has given corperate guarantee and mortgaged its immovable property for 2 loan of
100,000,000 {31 March 2014: T50,000,000) sanctioned to the Company. The balance payable as at 31
March 2015 is 57,594,959 (31 March 2014: T37,092,842).

¢) Balances reccivable/(payable)

31 Macch 2015 31 March 2014
ICAP (192,680) (6,555,856}
Sanjib Kumar fha 808,584 2,346,835

IntelieCash - {5,109,110)




Jain Sons Finlease Limltad
Summary of significant accounting policies and ether explanatory information
{Al amounts in T unless otherwisg stated)

23,

o)

b

24,

25,

26,

Earnings per equity share [EPES]

31 Masch 2015

31 March 2014

Profit atteiburable w equity shareholders for computation of

basic and diluted EPES 38,466,395

11487 417

Computation of weighted aveeage nmunber of equity shazes used in computation of basic and

diluted EPES

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Weighted average numbes of shares considered for computatiosn .
of bonie EIPES , 10,819,348 9,507,103
Add: Effect of potental dilutive shares 5,358,752 1,228,946
Weighted average number of shares considered for computation
of diluted EPES 16,175,100 1,736,049
EPES
Basic 3.56 1.21
Diluted 2.38 1.07

Easnings in foreign cutrency {accrual hasis)

31 March 2015

31 March 2014

Grant income (including scrvice tax) 42,523 294

31,627 042

Expenditure in forcign currency (accrual basis)
31 March 2015

31 March 2014

Travel and conveyance 658,153

501,467

Segment reporting

Based on the Company's business model and considering the internal financial reporting to the
management, “Lending to SMEs” bas been considered as the only reporumble segment. Further, all
operadons are based only in India. Hence, no separate financial disclosures have heen provided for

segmicsit repotting.




Jain Sons Finlease Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
fAll amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated} ’

27.  Additiensl disclosures pursuant to the Prudential Nomms:

(1

@

3

(4)

Liabilities side:
Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial

company inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:

f1) Debenmures
Secured

Unsecured
(other thag falling within the meaning of public
deposits)

(b} Deferred Credits

{¢) Term Loans, including interest accrued but not paid
{d) Inter-corporate loans and bortowing

{¢} Commercial Paper

(6 Other Loans - from banks and financial insdrudons

Assets side:
Break up of Loans and advances including bills receivable
{other than those included in (4) below):

4} Sceured, gross

b} Unsecured, gross

Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other
assets counting wwards ARC activides

{i) Leasc assets inchuding lease rentals under sundzy debtors:

{2} finance lease
{b) operating lease

(it} Stock on hire including bire charges under sundry
cebytors:

{a} assers on hire

{b) repossessed asser

{itl) Qther loans counting towards AFC activities
{2} loans where assets have been repossessed

(b} toans other than {a) above

Breakup of investments
Current Investments :
L. Quoted
(i} Shares :
(2) Equity
{b} Preference
{13) Debentures and Boads

31 March 2015
Amount Amount
outstanding overdue
442,147,948 .
116,954,998 -
583,104,646 -
31 Mareclh 2015
888,516,153
358,408,569



Jain Sons Firdease Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatery infarmation
{All amaounts in € uniess otherwise staled)

)

(iif) Units of rantual funds
(i¥) Government Secusties
{v} Othees

2. Unquoted
() Shares :
() Equity
(b) Preference
(i) Debeatures and Bonds
(UfUnits of mutual funds
{v) Government Sceuritics

(v} Orhers (PTCs)

Long Term investments :
1, Quoted

(i) Shares ;

(3) Eqity

{b) Preference

(i) Debentures and Bonds
(i} Units of mutmal funds
{iv} Government Securites

(¥} Others

2.Unguoted

(1) Shares:

{n) Equicy

(b} Preference

{ify Debentures and Bonds
(iil) Usnits of mutual funds

{iv} Government Sccurities

{v) Others (PTCs)

Borrower group-wise classification of assets
financed as in {2) and (3) above:

Cateposy

1. Related parties
{a) Subsidiaries
{(b) Companies in the same group
{c} other relared partes

2. Other than related pardes

Toral

45,759,000

69,918,625

Net of provision as a1 31 March 2015

Secured Ungecured TFotal
878362474 353,317,987 1,251,680,460
878,362,414 353,._317,937 1,231,680,4606




Jaln Sons Findease Limifed
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts in € unless otherwise stated)

(6) Tnvestor group-wise classification of all
investments (currents and long tenm} in
shares and securities (both guofed and
unquoted)

Market
value / Boolcvalue
Breakup or {net of
fairvahie provisions)
Category or NAV
1. Related parties - -
(n) Subsiciacies - -
() Companies in the same group - -
() Other related pasties - -
2. Other than related parties 115,677,623 114,520,847
Total 115,677,623 114,520,847

31 Magch 2015
{7y Other infermation
(i} Gross non-performing assets
(a) Related parties
(b) Other than related pactes 49,306,372
(i) iNet non-pecforming assets

(1) Relared partics
{b) Other than refated partics 46,180,839

(i} Assers acquited on satisfaction of debt

(ke below space bar beont intenitonally left blank}
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Jain Sons Finlease Limited
Summary of significant accounting policiss and other explanatory information
{All amounts in ¥ unless otherwlse stated)

29, Loans sanctioned but not dishursed as ar 31 March 2015 amounts to 320,500,000 31 March 2014
T87,000,000).
30. The Company has entered into cancellable operating lease aceangerments in respeet of its office premises.

31,

These lease arrangements ase for 2 period of one year and may be extended for such future perods a5
mutally agreed at the option of the lessee. The lease expease for cancellable operating leases during the

year ended 31 March 2015 45 ¥1,513,644 (31 March 2014: T1,866,100).

The Company has also entered into non-canceliable operating lease arrangements in respect of its office
—~ompany a P - ] geme sp

premises, The Company’s obligation rowards payment of consideration {excluding service taxes) over the

remaining term of the acrangement is as follows:

Perlod 31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Noz later than one year 3,333,000 -
Later than one year and not later than five years -

Later than fve years - _

The Company has received foreipn direct investment under automatic route 4s prescribed under the

Consolidatd Foreign Direct Invesement Policy of the Government of India, which, in view of the
management and based on apinion of an independent counsel, is in accordance with the extant

guidelines notified by the RBL

32, Based on informaton available with the Company, as at 31 March 2013, there are no suppliers who are
tegistered as micro and small enterpdses under the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

33, Addidonal information as required under paragraph 5 of the part II of the Schedule 111 to the Act to the

extent either ‘N or ‘Mot Applicable’ has not been furnished.

34. Previous year's figures have beeo regrouped/rearranged to confirm to those of the current year.

This is thie summary of sigaificant accountin
g ty of sigalic: nnng
policics and other explanatory information

referred to In our seport of eyen date.
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on béhalf of the Bourd of Direcrors of
Chartered Accountants Jain Sons Hinlease Limited

per Sanja§ Kumar Jain Vineer Chandra Rai
Pantner Chaitman
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DIN: 03409208

606290
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Nitin Prakagh Ageawal kg Desad

Chief Financial OFfficer Company Secretary

Place: Hyderabad o Place: Hyderabad
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